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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Iltem 1. Financial Statements

Cott Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share and pbare amounts)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, 201 July 2,2011  June 30, 201 July 2, 2011

Revenue, ne $ 625.¢ $ 640.C $ 1,149 $1,174.:
Cost of sale: 533.t 552.( 993.¢ 1,016.
Gross profit 92.2 88.C 155.% 157.€
Selling, general and administrative exper 48.¢ 45.1 90.€ 90.2
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm 0.3 — 0.9 —
Operating income 43.Z 42.¢ 64.2 67.4
Other (income) expense, r (0.5 — (0.7) 0.8
Interest expense, n 13.5 14.€ 27.5 29.C
Income before income taxes 30.2 28.5 37.4 37.€
Income tax expens 3.€ 0.7 4.3 2.3
Net income $ 26.2 $ 27¢ $ 33.1 $ 358
Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest: 1.2 1.1 2.1 2.C
Net income attributed to Cott Corporation $ 25.1 $ 26L& $ 31.C $ 33:&
Net income per common share attributed to Cott Corpration

Basic $ 0.27 $ 028 $ 0.3: $ 03¢

Diluted $ 0.2€ $ 028 $ 0.32 $ 03¢
Weighted average outstanding shares (thousands) atiuted to Cott

Corporation
Basic 94,46¢ 94,13 94,44¢ 94,101
Diluted 95,51t 95,52¢ 95,47¢ 95,42«

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensiveeome
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, 201 July 2, 2011 June 30, 201 July 2, 201
Net income $ 26.2 $ 27.€ $ 33.1 $ 35.:
Other comprehensive (loss) incor
Currency translation adjustme (7.2 1.3 ilC 10.€
Pension benefit plan, net of t! 0.3 0.2 (0.2 0.4
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments, nefi? — (0.9 0.9 —
Total other comprehensive (loss) incom (6.9 1.3 0.5 11.C
Comprehensive income $ 19.4 $ 28.¢ $ 33.6 $ 46.8
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to nonrodimg
interests 1.2 0.¢ 2.C 1.8
Comprehensive income attributed to Cott Corporation $ 18.2 $ 28 $ 31.€ $ 44k

! Net of the effect of $0.1 million and $0.1 millitax expense for the three and six months ended3ur@012, respectively, and net

the effect of nil and $0.1 million tax benefit fitre three and six months ended July 2, 2011, ré&spbc
Net of the effect of a nil and $0.1 million tax lefihfor the three and six months ended June 302 2@spectively, and net of the eff
of a $0.1 million and nil tax benefit for the thraed six months ended July 2, 2011, respecti

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélemsolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)

Unaudited

June 30, 201
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash & cash equivalen $ 47.1
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $6.6 (¥&f December 31, 201 262.
Income taxes recoverak 8.3
Inventories 234.(
Prepaid expenses and other as 25.1
Total current assets 576.¢
Property, plant & equipmel 488.¢
Goodwill 129.¢
Intangibles and other ass: 329.1
Deferred income taxe 3.3
Other tax receivabl 1.C
Total assets $ 1,528.
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Current maturities of lor-term debr $ 1.8
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 265.(
Total current liabilities 266.¢
Long-term debt 602.2
Deferred income taxe 37.2
Other lon¢-term liabilities 20.2
Total liabilities 926.4
Equity
Capital stock, no pe- 95,161,968 (December 31, 20- 95,101,230) shares issu 395.7
Treasury stocl (2.7
Additional paic-in-capital 44.¢
Retained earning 175.C
Accumulated other comprehensive i (24.7)
Total Cott Corporation equity 589.:
Non-controlling interest: 13.C
Total equity 602.:
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,528.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélmmsolidated financial statements.
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December 31, 201

$ 100.¢
210.¢

ORS

210.(

19.5

550.¢

482.2
129.¢
341.1
4.1
1.C

$ 1,508.¢

$ 3.4
281.]

284.t

602.1
34.1
20.C

940.7

395.¢
2.1)

42.6

144.1
(24.7)

555.¢

12.

568.2
$ 1,508.¢
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited

Operating Activities

Net income

Depreciation & amortizatio

Amortization of financing fee

Shar-based compensation expel

Increase in deferred income ta;

Gain on bargain purcha

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm

Other nor-cash item:

Change in operating assets and liabilities, netcquisition:
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Income taxes recoverat

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ

Investing Activities
Acquisition
Additions to property, plant & equipme
Additions to intangibles and other ass
Proceeds from sale of assets held for
Other investing activitie
Net cash used in investing activit|

Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term deb!
Borrowings under ABL
Payments under AB
Distributions to no-controlling interest:
Common share repurcha
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalel
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio

Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow information

Cash paid for intere:
Cash paid for income taxes (excludes reful

For the Three Months Ended

June 30, 201 July 2, 2011
$ 268 $ 27
23.7 23.¢
0. 0.
1.4 2.7
4c 1.0
0.9) —
0.2 —
1. 1.6
(31.9) (41.6)
(6.E) (16.€)
(4.1) (15
(0.1) (0.€)
22.1 24.¢
2 (0.9)
38.1 212
(19.9) (10.6)
(1.0 (25
1. —
— (1.9
(19.7) (15.1)
(1.4) (2.1)
17.5 43.€
(17.5) (58.7)
0.3 (0.9
0.9) —
2.0 (18.1)
__(©9 ___ 01
15. (11.6)
316 35.
$  47.1 $  24(
$ 9. $ 10z
$ 0.1 $ 0.8

For the Six Months Ended

June 30, 201 July 2, 201
$ 33.1 $ 35
47.5 47 .¢
2.1 1.8
2.2 3.8
4.C 1.¢
(0.9 —
0.6 —
0.€ 1.8
(51.¢) (71.0
(23.0 (22.7)
(5.9 (1.2
0.9 (0.7)
(16.9) 2.6
1.€ (3.6)
(5.0) (4.2)
(5.0) —
(37.9) (23.9)
(3.7) (2.5)
1.C —
— (1.7)
(45.1) (27.5)
(2.€) (3.4)
24.t 143.¢
(24.5) (131.7)
(1.4) (2.5)
(0.3) —
4.9 2
0.€ .3
(53.€) (24.2)
100.¢ 48.2
$ 47.1 $ 24.(
$ 25.F $ 27.¢
$ 04 $ 4

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Equity

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)
Unaudited

Cott Corporation Equity

Accumulated

Number of Number of Other Non-
Common Treasury Common Treasury Additional Retained Comprehensive Controlling
Shares Shares Paid- Total
(In thousands) (In thousands) Shares Shares in-Capital Earnings Loss Interests Equity
Balance at January 1,

2011 94,75( 1,051 $395.¢ $ (3.2 $ 40.t %106 3 (75 $ 13.C $535.
Common shares issu 25 — 0.1 — — — — — 0.1
Treasury shares issuec

PSU Plar — (181) — 0.t (0.5 — — — —
Treasury shares issued -

EISPP — (19¢€) — 0.€ (0.€) — — — —
Common shares issuec

Directors’ share

award 76 — — — 0.7 — — — 0.7
Share-based

compensatiol — — — — 3.1 — — — 3.1
Contributions to non-

controlling interest: — — — — — — — 1.8 1.8
Distributions to non-

controlling interest: — — — — — — — (2.5 (2.5
Comprehensive incorr

Currency
translation
adjustmen — — — — — — 10.¢ (0.2 10.€
Pension benefit
plan, net of ta; — — — — — — 0.4 — 0.4
Net income — — — — — 33.: — 2.C 35.:
Balance at July 2, 2011 94,85’ 674 $395.7 $ (2.)) $ 43EF $139.¢% % (6.3 $ 141 $584.]
Balance at

December 31, 2011 95,10! 674 $395.¢ $ (21) $ 42¢€ $1441 S 247 $ 124 $568.2
Common shares issuec

Directors’ share

award 96.C — — — 0.7 — — — 0.7
Common shares

repurchase (35.9 — (0.2 — — (0.7 — — (0.3
Share-based

compensatiol — — — — 1.t — — — 1.t
Distributions to non-

controlling interest: — — — — — — — (1.9 (1.9
Comprehensive incorr

Currency

translation

adjustmen — — — — — — 1.1 (0.7 1.C
Pension benefit

plan, net of ta; — — — — — — (0.2 — (0.2
Unrealized loss on

derivative

instruments, ne

of tax — — — — — — (0.3 — (0.3
Net income — — — — — 31.C — 2.1 33.1

Balance at June 30,
2012 95,16: 674 $395.7 $ (2.1)) $ 44 $175.C % (24.) $ 13.C $602.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Unaudited

Note 1 — Business and Recent Accounting Pronouncente
Description of Busines:

” ou ” ” ou ”

Cott Corporation, together with its consolidatedsidiaries (“Cott,” “the Company,” “our Company,Cbtt Corporation,” “we,” “us,’or
“our”), is one of the world’s largest beverage camigs focusing on private-label products and cehtranufacturing. Our product lines
include carbonated soft drinks (“CSDs"), clearl] sind sparkling flavored waters, energy-relateidids, juice, juice-based products, bottled
water and ready-to-drink teas.

Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying interim unaudited consolidatedrfaial statements have been prepared in accordatitéhe instructions to Form
10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X and in ac@orce with U.S. generally accepted accounting glasi(“GAAP”) for interim financial
reporting. Accordingly, they do not include allanfnation and notes presented in the annual corsgetidinancial statements in conformity
with U.S. GAAP. In the opinion of management, ajustments (consisting of normal recurring acciuetsisidered necessary for a fair
statement of our results of operations for therintgoeriods reported and of our financial conditasnof the date of the interim balance sheet
have been included. This Quarterly Report on Fobr@QlIshould be read in conjunction with the annualit®d consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes in our Annuabi®ep Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,12The accounting policies used
in these interim consolidated financial statemanésconsistent with those used in the annual citedet! financial statements.

The presentation of these interim consolidatedniine statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP re@si management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the consolidated financial statemendsaatompanying notes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
ASU 201-05— Comprehensive Income: Presentation of Compste Income

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢‘FASB”) amended its guidance on the presemati comprehensive income
in financial statements to improve the comparahitibnsistency and transparency of financial repgrand to increase the prominence of
items that are recorded in other comprehensiveniecd he new accounting guidance requires entitiesgort components of comprehensive
income in either (i) a continuous statement of caghpnsive income or (ii) two separate but conseediatements. The provisions of this
new guidance are effective for fiscal years, anerim periods within those years, beginning aftec@€mber 15, 2011. We have adopted this
guidance and presented the components of compiigheénsome in two separate but consecutive statésnéhis standard impacts the
presentation but does not have a financial impaciw consolidated financial statements.

ASU 201-08— Intangibles-Goodwill and Other: Testing Godtfair Impairment

In September 2011, the FASB amended its guidanoegiards to testing goodwill for impairment to aaklr concern raised about the
cost and complexity of performing the first stegtod two-step goodwill impairment test required @ndccounting Standards Codification
(“ASC") Topic 350 — “Intangibles-Goodwill and Oth&irhe objective of this update is to simplify hantities, both public and nonpublic,
test goodwill for impairment. The amendments indpedate permit an entity to first assess qualiéatactors to determine whether it is more
likely than not that the fair value of a reportimgit is less than its carrying amount as a basisétermining whether it is necessary to peri
the two-step goodwill impairment test described apic 350. The more-likely-than-not threshold idiked as having a likelihood of more
than 50 percent. The amendments are effectivenfiona and interim goodwill impairment tests perfedhfor fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2011. We have adopted this guidard@aarporated it into our goodwill assessment pdures. The adoption of this
guidance did not have a material impact on our alisested financial statements.

Note 2 — Acquisitions

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitiosutiistantially all of the assets and liabilitieCtiffstar Corporation (“Cliffstar”)
and its affiliated companies for approximately $80&iillion in cash, $14.0 million in deferred cothsiation to be paid over three years, of
which $4.7 million was paid during the third quamé¢ 2011, and contingent consideration of up t6.85nillion (the “Cliffstar Acquisition”).
The first $15.0 million of the contingent considiwa was based upon the achievement of milestonesrtain expansion projects in 2010,
which were achieved in 2010. The remainder of tringent consideration was based on the achievieoi@ertain performance measures
during the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011.
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We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€ar of certain objections to the performanceaswees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagembntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. During the third and fourth quarters of 20Catt made interim payments to the seller equ&ltb.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The payment of $21.0 million was ofed $4.7 million refund due to Cott as a resultref final determination of working capit
and the payment of $8.6 million included $0.9 roitliin settlement of certain of the seller’s objews to the calculation of the contingent
consideration. The seller’s remaining objectionth®calculation of the contingent consideratiom subject to an ongoing binding arbitration
process under the terms of the asset purchasenagmeeTl he seller is seeking up to $12.1 milliomdditional contingent consideration. The
final resolution of these matters may result in anis payable to the seller that vary from the amo@ipayments previously made to seller of
$34.3 million. We are currently unable to predie ultimate outcome of this action. Any changethefair value of contingent consideration
will be recorded in our Consolidated Statement®pérations.

During the first quarter of 2012, our United Kingud“U.K.”) reporting segment acquired a beverage wholesale business based in
Scotland for approximately $5.0 million. The busisevas purchased from a company in administratidrpaovided a number of benefits to
our U.K. reporting segment including increased prtafferings and market share, logistical synergfierough expansion into Scotland and
access to an additional production line. The adiijishas been accounted for using the purchashaodeaif accounting for business
combinations, and related operating results aledied in the Consolidated Statements of Operafionthe periods subsequent to the
acquisition. The identified assets, which inclu@tacentory, property, plant and equipment, trade @smand customers lists, were recorded at
their estimated fair values which exceeded thevalne of the purchase price of the business. Atingly, the acquisition has been accounted
for as a bargain purchase and, as a result, wgmezsl a gain of approximately $0.9 million asstedawith the acquisition. The gain is
included in the other (income) expense, net seaifdhe Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Note 3 — Share-Based Compensation

The table below summarizes the share-based contpeneapense for the three and six months ended 30n2012 and July 2, 2011,
respectively. This share-based compensation expeaseecorded in selling, general, and administeatixpenses in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations. As used below: (i) “Rerfnce-based RSUs” mean restricted share unitspsifiormance-based vesting granted
under the Company’s 2010 Equity Incentive Plan {8840 Equity Incentive Plan”), (ii) “Time-based RS’ mean restricted share units with
time-based vesting granted under the 2010 Equdgritive Plan, and (iii) “Stock options” mean noralified stock options granted under the
2010 Equity Incentive Plan and the Restated 198&r@on Share Option Plan (the “1986 Option Plan”).

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
(in millions of U.S. dollars June 30, 201 July 2, 2011 June 30, 201 July 2, 201!
Stock options $ 0.1 $ — $ 0.2 $ —
Director¢ share awart 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7
Performanc-based RSU 0.2 1.C 0.2 1.5
Time-based RSU 0.4 1.C 1.1 1.€
Total $ 1.4 $ 2.7 $ 2.2 $ 3.8
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As of June 30, 2012, the unrecognized share-basagensation expense and years we expect to reeotp@future compensation expense
were as follows:

Unrecognized sharebasec Weighted average year
(in millions of U.S. dollars, compensation expense as expected to recognize
except years of June 30, 2012 compensation
Stock options $

Performanc-based RSU
Time-based RSU

Total $

PN
~

NprPE
Nlim <N

Stock option activity for the six months ended J86e2012 was as follows:

Weighted averagi

Shares exercise price

(in_thousands (Canadian $)
Balance at December 31, 2C 284 $ 20.47
Awarded 38t 6.47

Exercisec — —
Forfeited or expirel (25 29.9¢
Outstanding at June 30, 20 644 11.7:
Exercisable at June 30, 20 25¢ $ 19.5¢

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 Perfocevbased RSU and Time-based RSU activity was kil

Number of Number of
Performance- Time-basec
(in thousands of share based RSUs RSUs
Balance at December 31, 2C 2,31¢ 1,54¢
Awarded 331 44z
Forfeited (109 (89
Outstanding at June 30, 20 2,54 1,901

Stock options awarded during the six months endee 30, 2012 were granted under the 2010 Equinitive Plan. Stock options
outstanding at December 31, 2011 were granted uhder986 Option Plan. The board terminated thé& I¥8tion Plan, effective as of
February 23, 2011. In connection with the termoratf the 1986 Option Plan, outstanding options$ eghtinue in accordance with the terms
of the 1986 Option Plan until exercised, forfeitgderminated, as applicable. No further awards lvélgranted under the 1986 Option Plan.

10
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Average Canadian to U.S. Dollar Exchange Rate fohe Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

The weighted average exercise prices for optiomdoite 3 are disclosed in Canadian dollars. Thesthblow represents the average
Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rate ferdilx months ended June 30, 2012:

For the Six Months Endec

June 30, 2012
Average exchange rate $ 0.99¢

Note 4 — Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $4.3 million on pretax ire@m$37.4 million for the six months ended JungZ81 2, as compared to income
tax expense of $2.3 million on pretax income of $37illion for the six months ended July 2, 201heTyear to date income tax expense was
reduced by an adjustment of $1.2 million relatedr@udit settlement and the lapse of a statuieihtion. During the second quarter of
2011, we completed a reorganization of our legttyestructure and refinanced intercompany debtaAssult of these activities, our annual
effective tax rate is expected to be lower thanstagutory rate for 2012.

Note 5 — Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed\bglidg net income by the weighted-average numbeoafimon shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted net income per commoarslis calculated using the weighted-average nuifbaymmon shares outstanding
adjusted to include the effect, if dilutive, of teeercise of in-the-money stock options, Perforreanased RSUs and Time-based RSUs.

A reconciliation of the denominators of the basid diluted net income per common share computat®as follows:

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended

(in thousands of share June 30, 201 July 2, 2011 June 30, 201 July 2, 201!
Weighted average number of shares outstandingc bas 94,46¢ 94,13 94,44¢ 94,107
Dilutive effect of Stock option 31 19€ 31 19t
Dilutive effect of Performan«-based RSU 30 50¢ 21 481
Dilutive effect of Timebased RSU 98¢t 687 97¢ 641
Adjusted weighted average number of shares outistgrd

diluted 95,61t 95,52¢ 95,47¢ 95,42¢

We excluded 183,500 (July 2, 2011 — 241,000) stgtlons from the computation of diluted net incopee share because the options’
exercise price was greater than the average mpricet of the common shares. Shares purchased @p#remarket and held by independent
trusts are categorized as treasury shares undicatyp accounting rules. We excluded 674,397 (2ul8011 —674,397) treasury shares held
in various trusts in the calculation of basic aifldtdd earnings per share.

11
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Note 6 — Segment Reporting

We produce, package and distribute private-lab&<€ 8lear, still and sparkling flavored waters, rggerelated drinks, juice, juice-
based products, bottled water and ready-to-driak te regional and national grocery, mass-merckaratid wholesale chains and customers
in the dollar convenience and drug channels thrdivghreporting segments — North America (whichluies our U.S. operating segment and
our Canada operating segment), U.K. (which incluesUnited Kingdom reporting unit and our ContitedriEuropean reporting unit),
Mexico, Royal Crown International (“RCI") and Allt@er.

North United

(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI All Other Total
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 201

External revenu? $ 47557 $131f $10z $84 $ — $ 625.¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 20.1 3.1 0.5 — — 23.7
Operating income (lost 31.2 10.t (0.9 2.4 — 43.2
Additions to property, plant & equipme 16.4 3.1 0.2 — — 19.7
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

External revenu? $ 8836 $230.7 $19.¢ %158 $ — $1,149.¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 40.z 6.4 0.6 — — 47.t
Operating income (lost 48.F 13.7 (2.2 4.2 — 64.2
Additions to property, plant & equipme 29.C 8.1 0.3 — — 37.4
As of June 30, 201!

Property, plant & equipmel $ 3851 $ 94¢ $91 $— $ — $ 488.¢
Goodwill 125.1 — — 4.k — 129.¢
Intangibles and other ass: 314.t 14.2 0.4 — — 329.1
Total asset? 1,236.¢ 248.1 29.¢ 13.2 0.7 1,528.°

! Intersegment revenue between North America andttier reporting segments was $4.0 million and $&ltion for the three and six

months ended June 30, 2012, respecti\

2 Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentatebs receivable

12
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North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI All Other Total
For the Three Months Ended July 2, 201
External revenu? $ 491 $126.( $16z $6&5 $ — $ 640.C
Depreciation and amortizatic 19.¢ 3.3 0.€ — — 23.¢
Operating income (lost 30.C 11.4 (0.6) 2.1 — 42.¢
Additions to property, plant & equipme 6.2 4.€ — — — 10.€
For the Six Months Ended July 2, 201:
External revenu? $ 9201 $212¢ $27.€ $141 $ — $1,174.:
Depreciation and amortizatic 39.¢ 6.7 1.1 — — 47 .4
Operating income (los! 50.¢ 14.4 (2.2 4.3 — 67.4
Additions to property, plant & equipme 16.4 6.8 — — — 23.c
As of December 31, 201
Property, plant & equipmel $ 3831 $ 89. $93 $— $ — $ 482.:
Goodwill 125.1 — — 4.t — 129.¢
Intangibles and other ass: 326.1 14.€ 0.4 — — 341.1
Total asset? 1,231. 237.( 28.4 11.5 0.¢ 1,508.¢

! Intersegment revenue between North America andttier reporting segments was $4.0 million and $&@IRon for the three and six

months ended July 2, 2011, respectiv

2 Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentatebs receivable

For the six months ended June 30, 2012, sales tmataaccounted for 31.8% (July 2, 2011 — 32.3%)wftotal revenues, 36.8% of
our North America reporting segment revenues (2uB011 — 36.2%), 15.5% of our U.K. reporting seghrevenues (July 2, 2011 —
14.7%), and 22.4% of our Mexico reporting segmemenues (July 2, 2011 — 50.0%).

Credit risk arises from the potential default afustomer in meeting its financial obligations to @sncentrations of credit exposure r
arise with a group of customers that have simii@nemic characteristics or that are located insdrae geographic region. The ability of si
customers to meet obligations would be similarfe@ked by changing economic, political or otherditions. We are not currently aware of
any facts that would create a material credit risk.

Revenues are attributed to operating segments loawstek location of the customer. Revenues by dipgraegment were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars June 30, 201 July 2, 201 June 30, 201 July 2, 201!
United States $ 414.¢ $ 433.¢ $ 781« $ 822:
Canade 73.5 71.7 127.1 123.¢
United Kingdom 131.5 126.C 230.7 212.C
Mexico 10.2 16.2 19.5 27.€
RCI 8.4 6.t 15.¢ 14.1
Elimination? (12.9 (14.0) (24.3) (26.0

$ 625 $ 640.C $ 1,149.¢ $1,174.

Represents intersegment revenue among our opessgmgents, of which $4.0 million and $8.1 milli@presents intersegment revenue

between the North America reporting segment ancbther operating segments for the three and sixtinsoended June 30, 2012,
respectively, compared to $4.0 million and $8.2iomil for the three and six months ended July 2,120dspectively
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Revenues by product were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2012

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenus
Carbonated soft drink $187.2 $ 45C $57 $— $237.¢
Juice 139.¢ 3.7 0.3 — 143.c
Concentrate 34 0.t — 8.4 12.:
All other products 145.¢ 82.% 4.2 — 232.C
Total $475.7 $131.f $10.z $8.4 $625.¢
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012
North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenus
Carbonated soft drink $351.C $ 787 P11z $— $ 441.(
Juice 273.2 6.8 04 — 280.4
Concentrate 6.3 1.3 — 15.¢ 23.4
All other products 253.3 143.¢ 7.€ — 404.¢
Total $883.6 $230.7 $19.¢ $15.6 $1,149.¢
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2012
North United
(in millions of physical case: America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent cast+ Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 83.% 23.C 3.6 — 110.Z
Juice 32.1 1.C 0.2 — 33.z
Concentrate 22.4 4.1 — 71.7 98.z2
All other products 66.4 27.€ 2.€ — 96.€
Total 204.2 55.7 6.7 71.7 338.:
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012
North United
(in millions of physical case: America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent casr Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 158.2 41.1 7.9 — 207.2
Juice 62.5 1.8 0.3 — 64.€
Concentrate 45.€ 8.1 — 142.7 196.4
All other products 117.5 49.€ 4.4 — 171.t
Total 383.¢ 100.¢ 12.€ 1427 639.7%
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Property, plant and equipment by operating segmgiof June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 wadlawdo

(in millions of U.S. dollars June 30, 201 December 31, 201
United States $ 337.7 $ 336.2
Canade 47 .4 46.€
United Kingdom 94.¢ 89.¢
Mexico 91 9.3
$ 488.¢ $ 482.2
Note 7 — Inventories
The following table summarizes inventories as @feJ80, 2012 and December 31, 2011:
(in millions of U.S. dollars June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Raw materials $ 85.4 $ 87.2
Finished good 128.( 102.:
Other _ 20¢ __ 204
$  234( $ 210«
Note 8 — Intangibles and Other Assets
The following table summarizes intangibles and pHssets as of June 30, 2012:
June 30, 2012
Accumulated
(in millions of U.S. dollars Cost Amortization Net
Intangibles
Not subject to amortizatic
Rights $ 45.¢ $ = $ 45.4
Subject to amortizatio
Customer relationshif $366.¢ $ 130.1 $236.7
Trademarks 28.7 22.4 6.3
Information technolog 62.2 47.¢ 14.4
Other 11.4 7.1 4.3
469.1 207.4 261.7
514. 207.¢ 307.1
Other Assets
Financing cost $ 23.2 $ 9.5 $ 13.7
Deposits 7.2 — 7.2
Other 14 0.3 1.1
31.§ 9.8 22.C
Total Intangibles & Other Assets $546.3 $ 217.C $329.1

Amortization expense of intangible and other asseis $8.8 million and $17.8 million for the thraedasix months ended June 30, 2(
respectively, compared to $8.9 million and $17.8iom for the comparable prior year periods.
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The estimated amortization expense for intangibles the next five years is:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Remainder of 201 $ 16.€
2013 30.4
2014 28.t
2015 26.4
2016 23.1
Thereaftel 136.5

$261.7

Our only intangible asset with an indefinite litdates to the 2001 acquisition of intellectual @by from Royal Crown Company, Inc.
including the right to manufacture our concentratath all related inventions, processes, technielmgechnical and manufacturing
information, know-how and the use of the Royal Qndwand outside of North America and Mexico (thégiRs”). The Rights are not subject
to amortization.

Note 9 — Debt
Our total debt as of June 30, 2012 and Decembe2@ll], was as follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars June 30, 201 December 31, 201
8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $ 215.( $ 215.(
8.125% senior notes due in 2C 375.( 375.(
GE obligation 10.4 12.£
Other capital lease 4.t 4.1
Other deb 14 i3
Total debt 606.2 608.(
Less: Current det
GE obligation- current maturitie: 0.€ 2.€
Other capital lease- current maturitie: 0.7 0.€
Other deb- current maturitie: 0.2 0.2
Total current debf 1.8 3.4
Long-term debt before discou 604.t 604.¢
Less discount on 8.375% not (2.9 (2.5
Total long-term debt $ 602.: $ 602.7

! Our 8.375% senior notes were issued at a discdun#85% on November 13, 20

Debt
Asset Based Lending Credit Facil

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agreémgh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thatteckan asset-based lending
credit facility (the “ABL facility”) to provide firancing for our North America, U.K. and Mexico refaog segments. In connection with the
Cliffstar Acquisition, we refinanced the ABL fadifion August 17, 2010 to, among other things, mevor the Cliffstar Acquisition, the
issuance of $375.0 million of 8.125% senior nokes aire due on September 1, 2018 (the “2018 Nog&sl)the application of net proceeds
therefrom, the underwritten public offering of 1803000 common shares at a price of $5.67 per simat¢he application of net proceeds
therefrom and to increase the amount availablédorowings to $275.0 million. We drew down a pantiaf the indebtedness under the ABL
facility in order to fund the Cliffstar AcquisitiotWe incurred $5.4 million of financing fees in c@ttion with the refinancing of the ABL
facility.
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As of June 30, 2012, we had no outstanding borrgsvimder the ABL facility. The commitment fee was% per annum of the unused
commitment, which was $264.0 million as of JuneZm,2.

On July 19, 2012, we amended the ABL facility tmamg other things, extend the maturity date toeeifluly 19, 2017 or, if we have t
redeemed, repurchased or refinanced the 8.375%rsaibordinated notes due 2017 (the “2017 NotegMay 1, 2017, May 15, 2017.

The financing fees incurred in connection with teéfnancing of the ABL facility on August 17, 201&lpng with the financing fees
incurred in connection with the amendment of the ABcility on July 19, 2012, are amortized using #iraight line method over the durat
of the amended ABL facility.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued the 2018 Notes. 3$eer of the 2018 Notes is our wholly-owned subsydCott Beverages Inc., but
Cott Corporation and most of its U.S., Canadian@rd subsidiaries guarantee the 2018 Notes. Ttezdat on the 2018 Notes is payable
semi-annually on Marchst and September 1 of eaah ye

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in cortien with the issuance of the 2018 Notes. Therfireg fees are being amortized
using the effective interest method over an eigdaryperiod, which represents the duration of tHE320otes.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued the 2017 Notes2Uh& Notes were issued at a $3.1 million discotling issuer of the 2017 Notes
is Cott Beverages Inc., but Cott Corporation angtnoedits U.S., Canadian and U.K. subsidiaries guotee the 2017 Notes. The interest or
2017 Notes is payable semi-annually on May15 aodelhber 15" of each year.

We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in cootien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whigitesents the duration of the 2017 Notes.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to various claims and legal procemsaith respect to matters such as governmergalatons, and other actions aris
out of the normal course of business. Managemdigves that the resolution of these matters witlimave a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations, or céletv.

We are currently involved in legal matters relatedarious contract disputes. We intend to vigolpdsefend against all claims in these
lawsuits; however, we are presently unable to ptete ultimate outcome of these actions.

As of December 31, 2011, our accrued liability fdgation contingencies with a probable likelihooflloss was $2.9 million which was
related to a single contingency. We settled thgallenatter for an amount not materially differemotmh our accrued liability.

On August 17, 2010, we completed the Cliffstar Astion. The first $15.0 million of the maximum $65.0 million of contingent
consideration was based upon the achievement ebtailes in certain expansion projects in 2010, hviviere achieved in 2010. The
remainder of the contingent consideration was bagetie achievement of certain performance measiunésg the fiscal year ended
January 1, 2011.

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€ar of certain objections to the performanceamees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertgddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagembntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. During the third and fourth quarters of 20Ca{t made interim payments to the seller equ&ltb.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The payment of $21.0 million was afed $4.7 million refund due to Cott as a resulttef final determination of working capit
and the payment of $8.6 million included $0.9 roifliin settlement of certain of the seller’s objees to the calculation of the contingent
consideration. The seller’s remaining objectionth®calculation of the contingent consideratiom subject to an ongoing binding arbitration
process under the terms of the asset purchasenagmeeThe seller is seeking up to $12.1 milliomdditional contingent consideration. The
final resolution of these matters may result in ane payable to the seller that vary from the amhofipayments previously made to seller of
$34.3 million. We are currently unable to predie ultimate outcome of this action. Any changethefair value of contingent consideration
will be recorded in our Consolidated Statement®pérations.

We had $11.0 million in standby letters of creditstanding as of June 30, 2012 (July 2, 2011 — $8l®n).
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Note 11 — Shares Held in Trust treated as Treasurghares and Share Repurchase Program

In May 2008, an independent trustee acting undeaiceof our benefit plans purchased 2.3 millioroaf common shares to be used to
satisfy future liabilities under the Amended angfted Performance Share Unit Plan (the “PSU Plamd)the Restated Executive Incentive
Share Purchase Plan (the “Restated EISPP”). Asraf 30, 2012, 0.7 million shares were held in trasti accounted for as treasury shares
under applicable accounting rules. Treasury stemeseported at cost.

Subsequent to the adoption of the 2010 Equity ltieerlan on May 4, 2010, the Human Resources amdp@nsation Committee of
the Board of Directors determined that certain oftS long-term incentive plans were no longer rezbdnd terminated the PSU Plan and the
Restated EISPP effective February 23, 2011. Nodurawards will be granted under such plans, asdwtwards will be made under our 2!
Equity Incentive Plan.

On May 1, 2012, our Board of Directors authorizeel tepurchase of up to $35 million of our commoarsh in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over anbath period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditig plan or at management’s discretion
in compliance with regulatory requirements, ancegimarket, cost and other considerations. We aablaro predict the number of shares
that will be repurchased under the share repurgh@ggam, or the aggregate dollar amount of theeshactually purchased. We may
discontinue purchases at any time, subject to camge with applicable regulatory requirements. \&fgurchased 35,272 shares of common
stock for approximately $0.3 million during the sed quarter ended June 30, 2012.

Note 12 — Hedging Transactions and Derivative Finasial Instruments

We are directly and indirectly affected by chanigefreign currency market conditions. These charigenarket conditions may
adversely impact our financial performance andreferred to as market risks. When deemed apprefdnamanagement, we use derivatives
as a risk management tool to mitigate the potemtiphct of foreign currency market risks.

We purchase forward contract derivative instrumentsward contracts are agreements to buy or splbatity of a currency at a
predetermined future date and at a predetermirtecbrgrice. We do not enter into derivative finahstruments for trading purposes.

As of June 30, 2012, all derivatives are carriefhiatvalue in the Consolidated Balance Sheethénline item accounts payable and
accrued liabilities. The carrying values of theidmives reflect the impact of legally enforceabtgeements with the same counterparties.
These allow us to net settle positive and negatdsitions (assets and liabilities) arising fronfeliént transactions with the same
counterparty.

The accounting for gains and losses that resutt thanges in the fair values of derivative instroteelepends on whether the
derivatives have been designated and qualify agihgdnstruments and the types of hedging relalignss The changes in fair values of
derivatives that have been designated and quaifiaah flow hedges are recorded in accumulated octimeprehensive income (loss)
(“AOCI") and are reclassified into the line itemtime Consolidated Statements of Operations in wtiiethedged items are recorded in the
same period the hedged items affect earnings. ®tleethigh degree of effectiveness between theihgdigstruments and the underlying
exposures being hedged, fluctuations in the valukeoderivative instruments are generally offsethanges in the fair values or cash flows
of the underlying exposures being hedged.

We formally designate and document, at inceptioa financial instrument as a hedge of a specifaedging exposure, the risk
management objective and the strategy for undegetkie hedge transaction. In addition, we formatigess both at the inception and at least
quarterly thereafter, whether the financial instemts used in hedging transactions are effectioéfsgtting changes in either the fair value
cash flows of the related underlying exposures. ke§fective portion of a financial instrument’sarige in fair value is immediately
recognized into earnings.

We estimate the fair values of our derivatives Hasequoted market prices or pricing models usingent market rates (refer to
Note 13). The notional amounts of the derivativeaficial instruments do not necessarily represenuats exchanged by the parties ¢
therefore, are not a direct measure of our expasuifee financial risks described above. The am®arthanged are calculated by referen
the notional amounts and by other terms of thevdévies, such as interest rates, foreign curremch@nge rates or other financial indices.
do not view the fair values of our derivativessolation, but rather in relation to the fair valwesash flows of the underlying hedged
transactions. All of our derivatives are straightfard over-the-counter instruments with liquid metek
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Credit Risk Associated with Derivatives

We have established strict counterparty creditgjirids and enter into transactions only with finahiostitutions of investment grade
better. We mitigate pre-settlement risk by beingypted to net settle for transactions with the sarounterparty.

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy

We use cash flow hedges to minimize the variabititgash flows of assets or liabilities or foreeastransactions caused by fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates. The chang#wifair values of derivatives designated as clast liedges are recorded in AOCI and are
reclassified into the line item in the Consolida&tdtements of Operations in which the hedged imsecorded in the same period the
hedged items affect earnings. The changes in &hireg of hedges that are determined to be ineffeatie immediately reclassified from
AOCI into earnings. We did not discontinue any ciev hedging relationships during the six monthged June 30, 2012. The maximum
length of time over which we hedge our exposuritiore cash flows is typically one year.

We maintain a foreign currency cash flow hedginggpam to reduce the risk that our procurement ietswwill be adversely affected
by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Mér éto forward contracts to hedge certain podiof forecasted cash flows denominated
in foreign currencies. When the U.S. dollar streegs significantly against foreign currencies,dkeline in the present value of future
foreign currency cash flows is partially offsetdpins in the fair value of the derivative instrurtseiConversely, when the U.S. dollar weal
as compared to other currencies, the increaseipréssent value of future foreign currency caswsl@s partially offset by losses in the fair
value of the derivative instruments. The total ol value of derivatives that have been designaeldqualify for our foreign currency cash
flow hedging program as of June 30, 2012 was apmprabely $9.6 million.

The fair value of the Company’s derivative instrumniabilities was $0.3 million as of June 30, 2012

The settlement of our derivative instruments reslib a charge to cost of sales of $0.2 million &d. million for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2012.

Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements

ASC No. 820 defines fair value as the exchangeephat would be received for an asset or paidatasfier a liability (an exit price) in
the principal or most advantageous market for gseor liability in an orderly transaction betwaearket participants at the measurement
date. Additionally, the inputs used to measurevalue are prioritized based on a three-level hi¢gna This hierarchy requires entities to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirtlirzeuse of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of inputs used to measure faurevate as follows:

» Level 1- Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

e Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prigeluded in Level 1, such as quoted prices fmilar assets and liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or Emassets and liabilities in markets that areawtive; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observablkendata

» Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supportelitthy or no market activity and that are signéfit to the fair value of the assets
or liabilities. This includes certain pricing moggtliscounted cash flow methodologies and simdahniques that use significant
unobservable input:

We have certain assets and liabilities that areired to be recorded at fair value on a recurriagi®in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
The following table summarizes those assets abditias measured at a fair value on a recurringibas of June 30, 2012:

June 30, 2012

(in millions of U.S. dollars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting Adjustment Fair Value Measurement

Liabilities
Derivatives $— $ 0.2 $— $ — $ 0.3
Total Liabilities $— $ 0.3 $— $ — $ 0.3
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reflected in the Consolid&athnce Sheets for cash, receivables, payables;tem borrowings and long-term
debt approximate their respective fair values, pkas otherwise indicated. The carrying valuesesiunated fair values of our significant
outstanding debt as of June 30, 2012 and Decenih@031 were as follows:

June 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
(in millions of U.S. dollars Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $ 215.( 233.¢ $ 215.C 231.¢
8.125% senior notes due in 2Ct 375.( 409.2 375.( 404.k
Total $ 590.( $ 643.( $ 590.( $ 635.¢

1 The fair values are based on the trading levelshéidffer prices observed by a market participemd are considered Level 1 inpt

Fair value of contingent consideration

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€ar of certain objections to the performanceamees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertgddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagembntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. During the third and fourth quarters of 20C&it made interim payments to the seller equ&ltb.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The payment of $21.0 million was afed $4.7 million refund due to Cott as a resulttf final determination of working capit
and the payment of $8.6 million included $0.9 roifliin settlement of certain of the seller's objees to the calculation of the contingent
consideration. The seller’s remaining objectionth®calculation of the contingent consideratiom subject to an ongoing binding arbitration
process under the terms of the asset purchasenagmeeTl he seller is seeking up to $12.1 milliomdditional contingent consideration. The
final resolution of these matters may result in ane payable to the seller that vary from the amoéipayments previously made to seller of
$34.3 million. We are currently unable to predie ultimate outcome of this action. Any changethefair value of contingent consideration
will be recorded in our Consolidated Statement®pérations.

Note 14 — Guarantor Subsidiaries

The 2017 Notes and 2018 Notes issued by our whmliged subsidiary, Cott Beverages, Inc., are un¢iomdilly guaranteed on a sen
basis pursuant to guarantees by Cott Corporatidrcartain other wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Gumior Subsidiaries”). The guarantees
of the Guarantor Subsidiaries are subject to rel@amited circumstances only upon the occurresfosertain customary conditions.

We have not presented separate financial stateraadtseparate disclosures have not been providestotng subsidiary guarantors
because management has determined such inform&timh material to the holders of the above-memtibnotes.

The following supplemental financial informatiortséorth on an unconsolidated basis, our Balanee=th Statements of Operations
and Cash Flows for Cott Corporation, Cott Beverdges Guarantor Subsidiaries and our other suasas (the “Non-guarantor
Subsidiaries”) The supplemental financial information reflects owestments and those of Cott Beverages Inc.dir thspective subsidiari
using the equity method of accounting.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale:

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper

Loss on disposal of property, plant &
equipmen:

Operating income

Other expense (income), r
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest expense, n

Income before income tax expense (benef
and equity income

Income tax expense (benel
Equity income

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest:

Net income attributed to Cott Corporation

Comprehensive income (loss) attributed t
Cott Corporation

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2012

Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 61.2 $ 241.¢ $ 287.( $ 44.¢€ $ (9.0 $ 625.¢
46.€ 201.( 254t 40.1 (9.0 533.t
14.4 40.¢ 32.t 4.8 — 92.5
6.€ 24.1 15.C 3.1 — 48.¢
— — 0.3 — — 0.3
7.8 16.5 17.2 1.7 — 43.2
0.€ — (0.9) (0.2) — (0.5)
— (2.4) 2.4 — — —
0.1 13.: 0.1 — — 13.t
7.1 5.€ 15.€ 1.8 — 30.2
3.7 (0.2) 0.5 (0.2) - 3.c
21.7 2 6.7 — (29.7) —
$ 251 $ 7C  $ 216 % 21 $ (297) $  26.:
— — — 1.2 — 1.2
$ 251 $ 7C  $ 216 $ 06 $ (299 $ 25.1
$ 182 3 (45 $ 127 $ (43 $ (B9 $ 18:
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale:

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper

Loss on disposal of property, plant &
equipmen:

Operating income

Other expense (income), r
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest expense, n

Income before income tax expens
(benefit) and equity income

Income tax expense (benel
Equity income

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest:

Net income attributed to Cott Corporation

Comprehensive income (loss) attributed t
Cott Corporation

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 105.( $ 449 $ 527.t $ 84.¢ $ (17.2 $ 1,149.¢
84.¢ 377.z 4724 76.€ (17.2) 993.¢
20.4 72.5 54.¢ 8.C — 155.%
15.2 39.7 30.C 5.€ — 90.¢€
— 0.4 0.5 — — 0.S
5.1 32.4 24.: 2.4 — 64.2
0.5 0.1 (0.9 (0.4) — (0.7)
— (4.7 4.7 — — —
0.2 27.C 0.3 — — 27.5
4.4 10.C 20.z 2.8 — 37.¢
3.2 0.6 0.6 (0.2) - 4.3
29.€ 2.3 11.€ — (43.9) —
$ 31C $ 117  $ 314 % 26 $ (439 $ 331
— — — 2.1 — 2.1
$ 31.C $ 117 $ 314 % 06 $ (439 $ 31c
$ 316 $ 174 $ (620 $ 456 $ (1.0 $  31.¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec

Revenue, ne $ 60.¢ $ 254.: $ 288. $ 47.2 $ (10.7) $ 640c(
Cost of sale: 47.€ 222.¢ 250.( 42.% (10.7) 552.(
Gross profit 13.2 31.t 38.:2 5.C — 88.C
Selling, general and administrative exper 9.€ 21.€ 10.2 3.3 — 45.1
Operating income 3.6 9.€ 28.C 1.7 — 42.¢
Other (income) expense, r (0.9 0.2 0.1 (0.7 — —
Intercompany interest (income) expense, (1.8 0.2 1.€ — — —
Interest expense, n 0.2 13.¢ 0.€ — — 14.€
Income (loss) before income tax (benefit)

expense and equity income (loss) 5.2 (4.7) 25.7 1.8 — 28.2
Income tax (benefit) expen — (0.2 0.7 0.1 — 0.7
Equity income (loss 21.C 0.¢ (3.9 — (18.5) —
Net income (loss $ 26t $ 37 $ 21¢ $ 1.7 $ (185 $  27¢
Less: Net income attributable to non-

controlling interest: — — — 1.1 — 1.1
Net income (loss) attributed to Cotl

Corporation $ 26t $ 37 $ 21¢ $ 0.€ $ (185 $  26:f
Comprehensive income (loss) attributed t

Cott Corporation $  27.¢ $ 5.1y $ 21.cC $ 3.1 $ (18 $ 28«
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011
Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec

Revenue, ne $ 102.3 $  469.: $ 540.¢ $ 80.4 $ (1929 $ 1,174.:
Cost of sale: 82.t 408.¢ 473.¢ 71.C (19.2) 1,016.
Gross profit 20.2 60.5 67.5 9.4 — 157.€
Selling, general and administrative exper 17.¢ 40.5 25.1 6.8 — 90.7
Operating (loss) income 2.4 20.C 42.4 2.€ — 67.4
Other (income) expense, r 0.1 0.7 0.1 (0.7 — 0.8
Intercompany interest (income) expense, (3.5 0.2 3.3 — — —
Interest expense, n 0.2 27.€ 1.1 0.1 — 29.C
Income (loss) before income tax (benefit)

expense and equity income (loss) 5.€ (8.5 37.¢ 2.€ — 37.€
Income tax (benefit) expen 1.1 1.2 (0.2 0.2 — 2.3
Equity income (loss 28.¢ 2.2 (7.2) — (23.9) —
Net income (loss $ 33: $ (759 $ 30 $ 24 $ (238 $ 358
Less: Net income attributable to non-

controlling interest: — — — 2.C — 2.C
Net income (loss) attributed to Cotl

Corporation $ 33: $ (755 $ 30¢ $ 0.4 $ (238 $ 33
Comprehensive income (loss) attributed t

Cott Corporation $ 43¢ $ 10.2 $ 134.¢ $ 33.¢ $ (1789 $  44.Ft
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other ass:
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current maturities of lor-term deb
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pe

Treasury stocl

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince
Total Cott Corporation equit

Non-controlling interest:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As of June 30, 2012

Cott Non-
Cott Beverage: Guarantor Guarantor Elimination
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 16& $ 32 $ 18¢ % 82 §$ — $ 47.1
31.7 111.€ 165.¢ 16.2 (63.4) 262.2
— 8.3 — — — 8.3
21.: 79.€ 123.t 9.€ — 234.(
1.3 17.C 6.7 0.1 — 25.]
71.1 219.¢ 314.¢ 34.4 (63.9) 576.¢
49.C 185.7 244.% 9.€ — 488.¢
26.€ 4.5 98.2 — — 129.¢
0.¢ 104.1 207.¢ 16.5 — 329.1
3.1 — — 0.2 — 3.2
0.4 — 0.€ — — 1.C
33.¢ 170.C 78.C 41.¢€ (323.9) —
475.2 377.¢ 525.( 227.5 (1,605.9) —
$ 6604 $1,062( $1468.¢ $ 330.1 $(1,992.6 $ 1,528.
$ — $ 13 8 01 $ 04 $ — $ 1.8
27.€ 129.t 156.( 15.5 (63.9) 265.(
27.€ 130.€ 156.1 15.7 (63.4) 266.¢
0.3 599.( 1.3 1.€ — 602.2
— 29.1 7.4 0.7 — 37.2
0.2 3.8 16.2 — — 20.2
43.C 76.7 172.5 31.5 (323.7) —
71.1 839.2 353.F 49.F (387.1) 926.
395.7 574. 1,458.¢ 174.¢ (2,208.) 395.7
(2.2) — — — — (2.2)
44.¢ — — — — 44.¢
175.( (348.9) (343.7) (44.%) 736.: 175.(
(24.1) (3.5) 0.1 137.1 (133.%) (24.2)
589.: 222.¢ 1,115 267.¢ (1,605.9) 589.5
— — — 13.C — 13.C
589.% 222.¢ 1,115.1 280.¢ (1,605.9 602.3
$ 6604 $1,062.( $1468.& $ 330.1 $(1,992.) $ 1,528.
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other ass:
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current maturities of lor-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt

Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pz

Treasury stocl

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince
Total Cott Corporation equit

Non-controlling interest:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As of December 31, 2011

Cott Non- Elimination

Cott Beverage: Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 13.7 $ 20.7 $ 58.¢ $ 7.€ $ — $ 100.¢
22.4 97.2 136.: 14.€ (59.7) 210.¢
— 8.8 0.8 0.3 — 9.¢
18.1 60.z 1242 7.5 — 210.C
1.8 13.¢ 3.6 0.1 — 19.c
56.C 200.7 323.¢ 30.1 (59.79) 550.¢
48.C 179.% 245.1 9.8 — 482.2
26.€ 4.t 98.2 — — 129.¢
0.€ 105.3 216.5 18.4 — 341.1
4.1 — — — — 4.1
0.t — 0.5 — — 1.C
30.c 166.4 79.1 41.€ (317.%) —
459.¢ 365.5 572.¢ 225.% (1,622.9 —
$ 626f $1,021.0 $1535! $ 325F  $(22,000.) $ 1,508.
$ — $ 2¢ $ 0.1 $ 0.4 $ — $ 3.4
27.1 117.1 181.2 15.4 (59.7) 281.1
27.1 120.( 181.: 15.¢ (59.7) 284.F
0.2 599.( 1.2 1.7 — 602.1
— 26.€ 6.8 0.5 — 34.1
0.2 3.t 16.5 — — 20.C
43.2 77.€ 168.¢ 27.€ (317.9) —
70.7 827.1 374.% 45.¢ (377.9 940.7
395.¢ 569.: 1,396.t 218.2 (2,184.() 395.¢
(2.2) — — — — (2.2)
42.¢€ — — — — 42.€
144.1 (365.5) (329.0) (43.2) 737.1 144.1
(24.7) (9.2) 93.5 92.% (176.6) (24.7)
555.¢ 194.¢ 1,161.( 267.3 (1,622.9 555.¢
— — — 12.4 — 12.4
555.¢ 194.¢ 1,161.( 279.% (1,622.9 568.2
$ 626.f $1,021.° $ 1,535.! $ 325.f $(2,000.) $ 1,508.¢
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2012
Cott Beverage: Non- Elimination
Guarantor Guarantor
Cott Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating Activities
Net income $ 25.1 $ 7.C $ 21¢ $ 2.1 $ (29.9) $ 26
Depreciation & amortizatio i3 8.¢ 11.¢ 14 — 23.1
Amortization of financing fee — 0.¢ — — — 0.¢
Share-based compensation
expense 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 — 1.4
Increase (decrease) in defer
income taxe: 1.8 2.1 0.4 0.3 — 4.C
Gain on bargain purcha — — (0.€ — — (0.9
Loss on disposal of property,
plant & equipmen — — 0.2 — — 0.2
Equity (loss) income, net of
distributions (21.7) 1.3 (6.7) — 29.7 —
Intercompany transactiol 12.C 0.2 — — (12.2) —
Other nor-cash item: 0.8 0.2 — — — 1.C
Net change in operating assets
and liabilities, net of
acquisition (9.9 (0.9 (20.7) 0.9 12.2 (18.6)
Net cash provided by
operating activitie: 10.5 17.€ 7.C 2.6 — 38.1
Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant ¢
equipmen: (2.7 (13.9) (3.2 (0.2 — (19.9)
Additions to intangibles and
other asset — (1.4) 0.4 — — (1.0)
Proceeds from sale of asset
held for sale — — 1.C — — 1.C
Advances to affiliate — — — 0.9 0.9 —
Net cash used in investing
activities (2.7 (15.7) (1.9) (1.7 0.9 (29.7)
Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debt — (2.3 — (0.3 — (2.4
Borrowings under ABL — 17.5 — — — 17.t
Payments under AB — (17.5) — — — (17.5)
Advances from affiliate 0.¢ — — — (0.9 —
Distributions to non-
controlling interest: — — — (0.3 — (0.3
Common share repurcha (0.3 — — — — (0.3
Net cash provided by (used
financing activities 0.€ 1.3 — (0.9 (0.9 (2.0
Effect of exchange rate
changes on cas (0.9 — (0.2 (0.9 — (0.9
Net increase in cash & casl
equivalents 7.8 i3 5.1 1.1 — 15.F
Cash & cash equivalents,
beginning of period 9.C 1.7 13.7 7.2 — 31.€
Cash & cash equivalents
end of period $ 16.¢ $ 3.2 $ 18.¢ $ 8.2 $ — $ 471




Table of Contents

Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

Cott Corporation

Cott Beverage:

Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Operating Activities

Net income $ 31.C
Depreciation &

amortizatior 3.1
Amortization of financing

fees 0.1
Share-based compensatis

expenst 0.8
Increase (decrease) in

deferred income taxe 11
Gain on bargain purcha —
Loss on disposal of

property, plant &

equipmen —
Equity (loss) income, net

distributions (29.9)
Intercompany transactiol 16.2
Other nor-cash item: 0.4
Net change in operating

assets and liabilities, net

of acquisition (18.7)

0.4
2.9)
1.4

0.2

(21.0

$ 31«
23.¢

0.1

2.8

0.1

(0.2)

0.4

Net cash provided by (us¢
in) operating activitie: 4.2

18.<

6.C

Investing Activities

Acquisition —
Additions to property,

plant & equipmen (4.2
Additions to intangibles

and other asse —
Proceeds from sale of

assets held for sa —
Advances to affiliate —

(24.9)

(3.6)

(0.9

(3.5

Net cash used in investing
activities (4.2)

(28.4)

(3.9)

Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term deb —
Borrowings under ABL —
Payments under AB —
Advances from affiliate S
Distributions to non-
controlling interest: —

Common share repurcha (0.2

(2.9)
24.F
(24.5)

(0.2)

(1.4)

Net cash provided by (used
in) financing activities 3.2

Effect of exchange rate
changes on cas (0.2)

(1.6)

0.1

Net increase (decrease) i
cash & cash
equivalents 3.1

(17.5)

0.7

Cash & cash equivalents
beginning of period 13.7

20.7

7.6

Cash & cash equivalents

Elimination

Entries

Consolidatec

$ (439

43.¢
(17.6)

17.€

$ 33.1
47.t

2.1

(94.5)

(5.0)

(5.0)
(37.9)

(3.7)

(45.1)

(3.5)

(2.6)
24.F
(24.5)

(1.9)
(0.9)

(3.5)

4.9)

0.€

(53.9)

100.¢




end of period $ 16.€ $ 3.2 $ 18 $ 8.2 $ — $ 471
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011

Cott Corporation

Cott Beverage:
Inc.

Operating Activities

Net income (loss 26.5 $ (3.7)
Depreciation & amortizatio 14 8.7
Amortization of financing

fees 0.1 0.7
Share-based compensatio

expense 0.€ 1.4
Increase in deferred income

taxes 0.€ 0.1
Equity income (loss), net o

distributions 21.C 0.¢
Intercompany transactiol 2.3 1.1
Other noi-cash item: (0.9 2.C
Net change in operating

assets and liabilitie (26.7) 22.F
Net cash provided by (usel

in) operating activitie: 25.7 33.5

Investing Activities

Additions to property,

plant & equipmen (1.5) (6.2
Additions to intangibles and

other asset 14 (2.€)
Other investing activitie — (1.8)
Advances to affiliate (19.9) —
Net cash (used in) provide:

by investing activitie: (19.9) (10.6)

Financing Activities

Payments of lor-term debi — (2.0
Borrowings under ABL — 43.€
Payments under AB — (58.7)
Advances from affiliate (4.7 (6.0
Distributions to non-

controlling interest: — —
Net cash (used in) provided

by financing activities (4.7 (23.7)
Effect of exchange rate

changes on cas — —
Net increase (decrease) i

cash & cash equivalents 1.7 (0.2
Cash & cash equivalents

beginning of period 7.C 1.7
Cash & cash equivalents,

end of period 8.7 $ 1.t

29

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
$ 21.€ $ 1.7
12.2 1.5
0.1 —
0.4 —
0.3 —
(3.4) —
(66.1) (6.2)
(34.9) (3.0
(3.1) —
(0.1) (1.2)
6.C 4.1
2.8 2.9
— (0.2)
19.¢ —
— (0.9)
19.€ (1.0
0.1 —
(12.2) (1.1)
20.€ 6.t
$ 8.4 $ 54

Elimination
Entries Consolidatec
$ (185 $ 27
— 23.¢
— 0.¢
— 2.7
— 1.C
(18.5) —
(3.4) —
— 1.€
40.4 (36.9)
— 21.:
— (10.9)
— (2.5)
— (1.8)
9.7 —
9.7 (15.1)
— (2.2)
— 43.€
— (58.7)
(9.7) —
— (0.€)
9.7) (18.1)
— 0.1
— (11.9)
— 35.¢
$ — $ 24.C
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011
Cott Beverage: Elimination
Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Cott Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating Activities
Net income (loss $ 33.2 $ (7.5 $ 30.¢ $ 24 $ (239 $ 358
Depreciation & amortizatio 3.C 17.5 24.1 3.C — 47.¢
Amortization of financing
fees 0.2 1kt 0.1 — — 1.8
Share-based compensatio
expense 1.C 2.2 0.€ — — 3.8
Increase (decrease) in
deferred income taxe 0.€ 1.2 (0.2 — — 1.¢
Equity (loss) income, net o
distributions (28.¢) (2.2 7.2 — 23.¢ —
Intercompany transactiol 6.S 2.7 — — (9.6) —
Other noi-cash item: — 1.8 — — — 1.8
Net change in operating
assets and liabilitie (16.9) (21.5) (67.9) 0.3 9.€ (96.9)
Net cash (used in) provide:
by operating activitie (0.9 (4.5) (5.7) 5.7 — (4.3
Investing Activities
Additions to property,
plant & equipmen (2.2 (14.2) (6.9 — — (23.9)
Additions to intangibles and
other asset 1.4 (2.6) (0.7 (1.2 — (2.5
Other investing activitie — 1.7 — — — (1.7)
Advances to affiliate — — (6.9 (1.9 8.3 —
Net cash used in investing
activities (0.9 (18.5) (13.4) (3.7 8.3 (27.5)
Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debi — (3.2 — (0.2 — (3.9
Borrowings under ABL — 143.¢ — — — 143.¢
Payments under AB — (131.9 — — — (131.2)
Advances from affiliate 1.¢ 6.4 — — (8.3 —
Distributions to non-
controlling interest: — — — (2.5) — (2.5
Net cash provided by (used
in) financing activities 1.¢ 15.4 — (2.7 (8.3 6.3
Effect of exchange rate
changes on cas 0.2 — 0.6 0.2 — 1.3
Net increase (decrease) in
cash & cash equivalents 0.6 (7.6) (17.6) 0.1 — (24.2)
Cash & cash equivalents
beginning of period 7.8 9.1 26.C 5.3 — 48.2
Cash & cash equivalents
end of period $ 8.7 $ 1.t $ 8.4 $ 5.4 $ — $ 24.(
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firer@ondition and Results of Operations is intenttefiirther the reader’s
understanding of the consolidated financial conditind results of operations of our Company. lushbe read in conjunction with the
financial statements included in this quarterlyotn Form 10-Q and our annual report on Form 1foikthe year ended December 31, 2011
(the “2011 Annual Report”). These historical finaistatements may not be indicative of our futpeeformance. This discussion contains a
number of forward-looking statements, all of whaale based on our current expectations and couddfbeted by the uncertainties and risks
referred to under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A in &011 Annual Report.

Overview

We are one of the world’s largest beverage compgdoi@using on private-label and contract manufaeguiOur objective of creating
sustainable long-term growth in revenue and prioiitst is predicated on working closely with outtaé partners to provide proven profitable
products. As a “fast followerdf innovative products, our goal is to identify whinew products are succeeding in the marketpladelavelo|
similar private label products to provide our repartners and their consumers with high qualitydorcts at a better value. This objective is
increasingly relevant in more difficult economimegs.

The beverage market is subject to some seasonativas. Our beverage sales are generally higheéngithe warmer months and also
can be influenced by the timing of holidays and tweafluctuations. The purchases of our inventasies related accounts payable fluctuate
based upon the demand of our products as welleatintfing of the fruit growing season. The seastyali our sales volume combined with
the fruit growing season causes our working capiégds to fluctuate throughout the year, with inegnlevels increasing in the first half of
the year in order to meet the higher summer demahite fruit inventory peaks during the last quaéthe year when purchases are made
after the growing season. In addition, our accowettgivable balances decline in the fall as custsrpay their higher-than-average
outstanding balances from the summer deliveries.

We typically operate at low margins, and therefefatively small changes in cost structures carenadly impact results.

Ingredient and packaging costs represent a signifiportion of our cost of sales. These costsagst to global and regional
commodity price trends. Our largest commoditiesadweninum for cans and ends, resin for polyethykenephthalate bottles, preforms and
caps, corn for high fructose corn syrup (“HFCStjitfand fruit concentrates. We attempt to managesgposure to fluctuations in ingredient
and packaging costs of our products by implemergmze increases as needed and entering into fiked commitments for a portion of our
ingredient and packaging requirements. We haveethiato fixed price commitments for all of our HE@equirements, and a majority of our
forecasted aluminum and fruit requirements forrdmeainder of 2012, as well as a portion of ourdasted resin requirements. We also have
entered into fixed price commitments for over ldlbur aluminum and a portion of our fruit requirents for 2013.

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitiosutiistantially all of the assets and liabilitieCtiffstar Corporation (“Cliffstar”)
and its affiliated companies for approximately $80illion in cash, $14.0 million in deferred coeration to be paid over three years, of
which $4.7 million was paid during the third quamé 2011, and contingent consideration of up t6.@5nillion (the “Cliffstar Acquisition”).
The first $15.0 million of the contingent considiwa was based upon the achievement of milestonesrtain expansion projects in 2010,
which were achieved in 2010. The remainder of thringent consideration was based on the achievieoi@ertain performance measures
during the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011. EHersof Cliffstar notified us of certain objectigto the performance measures used to
calculate the contingent consideration, and thersasserted a claim for amounts in excess of tieuats accrued as contingent consideration
at July 2, 2011. During the third and fourth questef 2011, Cott made interim payments to the seligial to $21.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The payment of $21.0 million was afed $4.7 million refund due to Cott as a resulttf final determination of working capit
and the payment of $8.6 million included $0.9 roifliin settlement of certain of the seller’'s objees to the calculation of the contingent
consideration. The seller’s remaining objectionth®calculation of the contingent consideratiom subject to an ongoing binding arbitration
process under the terms of the asset purchasenagmeeThe seller is seeking up to $12.1 milliomdditional contingent consideration. The
final resolution of these matters may result in ante payable to the seller that vary from the amhofipayments previously made to seller of
$34.3 million. We are currently unable to prediet tiltimate outcome of this action. Any changeth@nfair value of contingent consideration
will be recorded in our Consolidated Statement®pérations.

We supply Walmart and its affiliated companies,emahnual non-exclusive supply agreements, witaraety of products in the United
States, Canada, United Kingdom and Mexico, inclgaiarbonated soft drinks (“CSDs"), clear, still aphrkling flavored waters, juice, juice-
based products, bottled water, energy drinks aadyr¢o-drink teas. During the
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first six months of 2012, we supplied Walmart wathof its private label CSDs in the United Statesthe event Walmart were to utilize other
suppliers to fulfill a portion or all of its req@iments for such products, our operating resulttddeei materially adversely affected. Sales to
Walmart for the six months ended June 30, 2012Jahd2, 2011 accounted for 31.8% and 32.3% of t@atnue, respectively.

Summary financial results

Our net income for the three months ended Jun2QI®, (the “second quarter”) and the six months érddme 30, 2012 (“first half of
2012" or “year to date”) was $25.1 million or $0.2ér diluted share and $31.0 million or $0.32 pkrteld share, respectively, compared with
net income of $26.5 million or $0.28 per dilutecdshand $33.3 million or $0.35 per diluted sharelie three and six months ended July 2,
2011, respectively.
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The following items of significance impacted ounaficial results for the first half of 2012:

. our revenue decreased 2.1% from the comparableywa period due primarily to a decline in Nortimérica volume
resulting from our exit from certain low margin imesss and the continuing decline in the U.S. s$talble juice market.
Absent foreign exchange impact, revenue decreadéd from the comparable prior year peri

. our gross profit as a percentage of revenue inetetis13.5% compared to 13.4% from the comparaiibe pear period
due primarily to increased pricing on products andexit from lower margin busines

. our filled beverage 8-ounce equivalents (“beverease volume lecreased 8.0% during the period due primarilyéoexit
of certain low margin business and the continuiaglide in the U.S. shelf stable juice marl

. our selling, general and administrative (“SG&A")penses for the period increased to $90.6 milliomf90.2 million in
the comparable prior year period due primarilyridrecrease in certain employee-related costs dffgeeductions in
information technology cost

. our loss on disposal of property, plant and equigmeas related to the disposal of approximatel@ $fillion of machinen
and equipment that was no longer being used irJosr and U.K. operating segmer

. other income was $0.7 million during the period gamed to other expense of $0.8 million in the corapke prior year
period due primarily to a bargain purchase of $0iion recorded during the perio

. our interest expense decreased by $1.5 millionrasudt of decreased debt balances held througheuteriod

. our income tax expense was $4.3 million comparekt8 million in the comparable prior year peridde primarily to the

prior year implementation of a global restructunmigich resulted in tax benefits and recording resin the current peric
against deferred tax assets that are uncertaia tedlized; ani

. our earnings before interest expense, taxes, dapicgcand amortization adjusted for inventory stgp(step-down) and
integration costs related to the Cliffstar Acqusit(“Adjusted EBITDA”) increased 2.9% to $114.2lon from $111.0
million in the comparable prior year peric

The following items of significance impacted onagficial results for the first half of 2011:

. the Cliffstar Acquisition contributed $328.5 miltido revenue and $23.0 million to operating inco

. gross profit declined to 13.4% compared to 16.68mfthe comparable prior year period due primadlpigher commodit
Ccosts;

. our revenue increased 49.1% from the comparabde pear period. Absent foreign exchange impactmere increased

46.7% from the comparable prior year period, primatue to the Cliffstar Acquisitior

. our beverage case volume increased 25.0% yeatealda primarily to the Cliffstar Acquisition, witicontributed a
27.6% increase in the North America operating segnexcluding the impact of the Cliffstar Acquisiti, our beverage
case volume increased 5.1% and 5.2% in North Arag

. our SG&A expenses for the first half of 2011 inaedto $90.2 million from $66.9 million in the coarpble prior year
period, due primarily to the Cliffstar Acquisitiocertain employee related costs, information tetdgyocosts, professional
fees, and customer and legal reser

. our interest expense increased to $29.0 milliom yedate from $12.3 million in the comparable pyear period due
primarily to the issuance of $375.0 million of semnotes that are due on September 1, 2012018 Note”);

. the decrease in other expense of $1.5 million wesptimarily to the write-off of financing fees $1.4 million in the
comparable prior year period; a

. our income tax expense decreased $10.9 milliontpedate from the comparable prior year period, plimarily to lower
pretax income in the United States and Canadagtirganization of our legal entity structure anfihancing of
intercompany deb
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Non-GAAP Measures

In this report, we supplement our reporting of fioial measures determined in accordance with We&eglly accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) by utilizing certain non-GAAHrfancial measures. We exclude the impact of foreighange from GAAP revenues to
separate the impact of currency exchange rate elsangm Cott’s results of operations, and, in seames, by excluding the impact of the
Cliffstar Acquisition. Cott excludes these itemdtiter understand trends in the business andrpact of the Cliffstar Acquisition.

We also utilize earnings before interest experssed, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”), whiis GAAP earnings before
interest expense, provision for income taxes, deggtien and amortization. We consider EBITDA toareindicator of operating performance
because we use it to measure our ability to sedéts, fund capital expenditures, and expand osiniess. We also use EBITDA, as do
analysts, lenders, investors and others, to evat@hpanies because it excludes certain itemgématary widely across different industries
or among companies within the same industry. ThéfErences can result in considerable variabilitghe relative costs of productive assets
and the depreciation and amortization expense armomgpanies. We also utilize Adjusted EBITDA as mdi¢ator of operating performance.
Our Adjusted EBITDA reflects inventory step-dowrjuedments and integration costs related to the's@dif Acquisition. Adjusted EBITDA
excludes these items to make period-over-periodpenisons of our ongoing core operations before radhteharges.

Because Cott uses these adjusted financial réauhtie management of its business and to understagelrlying business performance,
management believes this supplemental informatiarséful to investors for their independent evédmeand understanding of Cattbusines
performance and the performance of its manageriietnon-GAAP financial measures described abovénaaddition to, and not meant to
be considered superior to, or a substitute forf'€bhancial statements prepared in accordanck @GAAP. In addition, the non-GAAP
financial measures included in this report refleeinagement’s judgment of particular items, and beagifferent from, and therefore may not
be comparable to, similarly titled measures repbbie other companies.
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The following table summarizes our Consolidatedestents of Operations as a percentage of revemulddhree and six months

ended June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Revenue

Cost of sale:

Gross profit

Selling, general, and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm
Operating incom:

Other (income) expense, r

Interest expense, n

Income before income tax

Income tax expens

Net income

Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest:
Net income attributed to Cott Corporati

Depreciation & amortizatio

For the Three Months Ended

For the Six Months Ended

June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

June 30, 2012 July 2, 2011

$ % $ %

$ % $ %

625.¢ 100.C 640.C 100.C
533.f 85.5 552.C 86.z

1,149.¢ 100.C 1,174.. 100.C
993.¢ 86.5 1,016.! 86.t

92.5 147 88.C 13
48.¢ 7.8 45.1 7.C

=
0l = = =
ke

155.7 13t 157.¢ 134
90.€ 7.8 90.2 7.7
0.8 0.1 — —

432 68 42¢ 68
05 (0.1 —
135 22 146 2.3

642 5.6 67.L 5.7
©.7 (0.2 0. 01
275 24 200 2E

30.2 48  28.: 4.5

37.4 3.E 37.€ 3.1

3.6 0.6 0.7 0.1 4.3 0.4 2.3 0.2
26.5 42 27.€ 4.4 33.1 2.8 35.8 2.8
1.2 0.2 1.1 0.2 2.1 0.2 2.C 0.2

25.1 4.0 26.5 4.2

31.C 2.7 33.8 2.7

23.7 3.8 23.¢ 3.7

47.5 4.1 47.4 4.C

The following table summarizes our revenue and aipeg income (loss) by reporting segment for titreg¢hand six months ended

June 30, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively:

(in millions of U.S. dollars
Revenu

North America
United Kingdom
Mexico

RCI

Total

Operating income (los:
North America

United Kingdom
Mexico

RCI

Total

For the Three Months Ended

For the Six Months Ended

June 30, 201 July 2, 2011 June 30, 201 July 2, 201
$ 4753 $ 491: $ 883. $ 920.1
131t 126.C 230.7 212.:

10.z 16.2 19.c 27.€

8.4 6.t 15.¢ 14.1

$ 625 $ 640 $ 1,149.¢ $1,174..
$ 31.2 $ 30.C $ 48.F $ 50.t
10.t 11.4 13.7 14.£

0.9 (0.6) (2.2) 2.1)

2.4 2.1 4.2 4.3

$ 43 $  42.¢ $ 64 $ 67

Revenues are attributed to reporting segments laséte location of the customer.
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The following table summarizes our beverage casenve by reporting segment for the three and sixttmoended June 30, 2012 and
July 2, 2011, respectively:

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended

(in millions of physical case: June 30, 201 July 2, 2011 June 30, 201 July 2, 201!
Volume- 8 0z equivalent cased otal Beverage (including

concentrate
North America 204.2 217.7 383.¢ 412.¢
United Kingdom 55.7 58.2 100.¢ 101.7
Mexico 6.7 11.¢ 12.€ 20.z
RCI 71.7 61.€ 142.7 144.1
Total 338.: 349.: 639.7 678.¢
Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas+ Filled Beverage
North America 181.¢ 198.¢ 338.: 369.2
United Kingdom 51.7 53.7 92.¢ 92.¢
Mexico 6.7 11.¢ 12.€ 20.z
RCI — — — —
Total 240.: 264.7 443k 482.2

The following tables summarize revenue and volupnprbduct for the three and six months ended JOn@@&12 and July 2, 2011,
respectively:

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2012

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenus
Carbonated soft drink $187.. $ 45C $57 $— $237.¢
Juice 139.: 3.7 0.3 — 143.%
Concentrate 34 0.t — 8.4 12.:
All other products 145.¢ 82.2 4.2 — 232.:
Total $475.7 $131t $10.2 $84 $625.¢
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2012
North United
(in millions of physical case: America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas- Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 83.% 23.C 3.6 — 110.Z
Juice 32.1 1.C 0.2 — 33.
Concentrate 22.4 4.1 — 71.7 98.2
All other products 66.4 27.€ 2.€ — 96.€
Total 204.2 55.7 6.7 71.7 338.:

36



Table of Contents

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $351.(C $ 787 S$l1: $— $ 441.(
Juice 273.2 6.8 04 — 280.4
Concentrate 6.2 1.3 — 15.¢ 23.4
All other products 253.C 143.¢ 7.€ — 404.¢
Total $883.6 $230.7 $19.2 $15.6 $1,149.¢
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012
North United
(in millions of physical case: America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas+ Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 158.2 41.1 7.9 — 207.2
Juice 62.5 1.8 0.3 — 64.€
Concentrate 45.€ 8.1 — 142.5 196.¢
All other products 117.5 49.€ 4.4 — 171.t
Total 383.¢ 100.¢ 12.€ 1427 639.7%
For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011
North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenus
Carbonated soft drinks —
$200.7 $ 445 $12: % $257.¢
Juice —
152.2 4.C 0.6 157.1
Concentrate 2.C 1.€ — 6.5 10.1
All other products —
136.4 75.¢ 3.C 215.2
Total $491.F $126.0 $16.2 $6.5 $640.C
For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011
North United
(in millions of physical case: America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas- Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 92.4 23.4 7.8 — 123.7
Juice 34.t 1.1 0.7 — 36.5
Concentrate 19.C 4.3 — 61.€ 84.€
All other products 71.¢ 29.4 3.2 — 104.4
Total 217.% 58.2 11.€ 61.€ 349.:
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For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $357.( $ 86.¢ $21.¢ $— $ 465.F
Juice 312.2 6.2 1.7 — 320.1
Concentrate 4.3 1.8 — 14.1 20.z
All other products 246.€ 117.¢ 4.3 — 368.:
Total $920.1 $212.0 $27.¢ $14.1 $1,174..
For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011
North United
(in millions of physical case: America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas+ Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 171.1 477 14.5 — 233.c
Juice 71.€ 1.7 1.3 — 74.€
Concentrate 43.€ 8.8 — 144.1 196.5
All other products 126.2 43.F 4.4 — 174.1
Total 412.¢ 101.% 20.z 144.1 678.¢

Results of operations

The following tables summarize the change in reednureporting segment for the three and six moatited June 30, 2012 and Jul

2011, respectively:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Change in revenue
Impact of foreign exchan¢t

Change excluding foreign exchar
Percentage change in revet
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgsd

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Change in revenue
Impact of foreign exchang!
Change excluding foreign exchar

Percentage change in revet
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgsd

For the Three Months Ended

June 30, 2012

North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
$(14.2) $(15.6) $ 55 $ (6.0) $1.¢
8.5 2.7 3.7 2.1 —
$ (5.7) $(12.9 $ 9.2 $ (3.9 $ 1.9
-2.2% -3.2% 4.4% -37.(% 29.2%
-0.€% -2.€% 7.3% -24.1% 29.2%
For the Six Months Ended
June 30, 2012
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
$(24.5) $(36.%) $ 18.4 $ (8.9 $ 1.7
11.7 3.4 54 2.9 —
$(12.€) $(32.9) $ 23.€ $ (5.4) $ 1.7
-2.1% -3.9% 8.7% -30.1% 12.1%
-1.1% -3.€% 11.2% -19.6% 12.1%

1 Impact of foreign exchange is the difference leetwthe current year's revenue translated utiliffiregcurrent year’'s average foreign
exchange rates less the current’s revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra
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(in millions of U.S. dollars

Change in revenue
Impact of foreign exchan¢t

Change excluding foreign exchar
Percentage change in revet
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignaegsd

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Change in revenue
Impact of foreign exchang®
Change excluding foreign exchar

Percentage change in revet
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgsd

For the Three Months Ended

July 2, 2011
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
$215.: $190.C $ 24.¢ $ 21 $ (2.0
(14.0) (3.9) (9.6) (1.1) —
$201. $187.: $ 15.2 $ 1.C $ (2.0
50.7% 63.2% 24.5% 14.%% -24.2%
47.£% 62.2% 15.(% 7.1% -24.2%
For the Six Months Ended
July 2, 2011
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
$386. $356.1 $ 314 $ 17 $ (2.7
(19.0) (5.2) (12.1) (1.7) —
$367. $350.¢ $ 19.c $— $ (2.7
49.1% 63.1% 17.2% 6.€% -16.1%
46.7% 62.2% 10.7% 0.C% -16.1%

1 Impact of foreign exchange is the difference leetwthe current year's revenue translated utiliffiregcurrent year’'s average foreign
exchange rates less the current’s revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra

The following table summarizes our EBITDA and Adggs EBITDA for the three and six months ended Bhe2012 and July 2, 2011,

respectively.

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Net income attributed to Cott Corporation
Interest expense, n

Income tax expens

Depreciation & amortizatio

Net income attributable to n-controlling interest:

EBITDA

Acquisition adjustment
Inventory ste-down
Integration cost

Adjusted EBITDA

For the Three Months Ended

For the Six Months Ended

June 30, 201

25.1
13t
3.9
23.7
1.2

67.4

July 2, 2011 June 30, 201 July 2, 201
$ 26.t $ 31.C $ 33:
14.€ 27.F 29.C

0.7 4.3 2.3

23.¢ 47.5 47 .2

1.1 2.1 2.C

$ 66.7 $ 112« $ 114.(
(0.9 — (4.1)

0.4 1.8 1.1

$ 66.2 $ 114. $ 111.(
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Revenue- Revenue decreased $14.2 million or 2.2% and $24lion or 2.1% in the second quarter and yeatdte, respectively, from
the comparable prior year periods. Excluding thpaat of foreign exchange, revenue decreased 0.9%4.4f6 in the second quarter and year
to date, respectively, from the comparable pri@rymeriods.

North America revenue decreased $15.6 million 8%Band $36.3 million or 3.9% in the second quaatet year to date, respectively,
from the comparable prior year periods due pripddla 6.2% and 7.0% decrease in beverage casmeafuthe second quarter and year to
date, respectively, from the comparable prior yeaiods. Net selling price per beverage case (wisictet revenue divided by beverage case
volume) increased 5.7% and 4.8% in the second euand year to date, respectively, from the conipanarior year periods. The increase in
net selling price per beverage case was offsetbexit from certain low gross margin business anaoduct mix shift into sports drinks fr
100% shelf-stable juice.

U.K. revenue increased $5.5 million or 4.4% and.#$18illion or 8.7% in the second quarter and yeatdte, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods due primarily to aorgd improvement in product mix and growth in tieolesale channel. Net selling price
per beverage case increased 8.4% and 8.9% intbadeuarter and year to date, respectively, fimencbmparable prior year periods due
primarily to price increases implemented to mitggasing commodity costs and improved product rAlxsent foreign exchange impact, U.K.
revenue increased 7.3% and 11.2% in the seconteqaand year to date, respectively.

Mexico revenue decreased $6.0 million or 37.0%$$8 million or 30.1% in the second quarter and yeaate, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods due primarily toltdss of a regional brand license at the end deits, offset in part by a 10.9% and 12.1%
increase in net selling price per beverage cafieeisecond quarter and year to date, respectikblent foreign exchange impact, Mexico
revenue decreased 24.1% and 19.6% in the secomigqaad year to date, respectively.

RCI revenue increased $1.9 million or 29.2% and $dillion or 12.1% in the second quarter and yeatdte, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods. Concentrate volumaeeased 16.4% and decreased 1.0% in the secortéroprad year to date, respectively,
from the comparable prior year periods due prigddlthe timing of shipments and declining salethin Middle East. Net selling price per
case remained flat in the second quarter and gedaite, respectively, from the comparable prior yeaiods. RCI primarily sells concentrate.

Cost of Sales- Cost of sales represented 85.3% and 86.5% ofivevie the second quarter and year to date, régplgctcompared to
86.2% and 86.6% in the comparable prior year psridtie decrease in cost of sales as a percentageenfue in the second quarter was due
primarily to the easing of commodity costs. Varebbsts represented 75.5% and 75.7% of total satke second quarter and year to date,
respectively, compared to 76.9% and 76.4% in tmepawable prior year periods. Major elements oféhesmiable costs included ingredient
and packaging costs, distribution costs and fe&stpahird-party manufacturers.

Gross Profit— Gross profit as a percentage of revenue incretased.7% and 13.5% in the second quarter andtgedaite, respectively,
from 13.8% and 13.4% in the comparable prior yemiogls due primarily to increased pricing on pradwmnd our exit from lower margin
business.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSG&A increased $3.7 million or 8.2% and $0.4 imillor less than 1% in the second
guarter and year to date, respectively, from thaparable prior year periods. The increase was doggly to an increase of certain
employeerelated costs offset by reductions in informatiechinology costs. As a percentage of revenue, SG&rfeased to 7.8% and 7.9%
the second quarter and year to date from 7.0% af¥d ih the comparable prior year periods.

Operating Income- Operating income was $43.2 million and $64.2iomlin the second quarter and year to date, reispéct
compared to $42.9 million and $67.4 million, respedy, in the comparable prior year periods. Theréase in the second quarter was due to
higher gross profit offset by higher SG&A costs,iielthe decrease year to date was due primarilgpwer overall sales relative to the prior
year.

Other (Income) Expense Other income was $0.5 million and $0.7 milliortlre second quarter and year to date, respectively,
compared to other expense of nil and $0.8 milliespectively, in the comparable prior year peridde increase in the second quarter was
due primarily to a gain on bargain purchase inameunt of $0.9 million.

Income Taxes- Income tax expense was $3.9 million and $4.3anilin the second quarter and year to date, reispéctcompared to
$0.7 million and $2.3 million, respectively, in themparable prior year periods. The increase wagpdwmarily to the prior year
implementation of a global restructuring which festhin tax benefits and recording reserves inctireent period against deferred tax assets
that are uncertain to be realized. The global westring occurred during the second quarter of 281id is expected to result in a reduction of
Cott’s effective tax rate versus the statutory fate¢he current year.
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Liquidity and Financial Condition

The following table summarizes our cash flows fa three and six months ended June 30, 2012 an@ J2011, respectively, as
reported in our Consolidated Statements of CasWws-In the accompanying Consolidated Financial &tatgs:

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
(in millions of U.S. dollars June 30, 201 July 2, 2011 June 30, 201 July 2, 201:
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 38.1 $ 21: $ (5.0) $ 4.9
Net cash used in investing activiti (19.79) (15.7) (45.7) (27.5)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (2.0 (18.]) 4.3 6.3
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 0.9 0.1 0.€ 1.3
Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equive 15.t (11.¢) (53.9) (24.2)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of pel 31.€ 35.¢ 100.¢ 48.2
Cash & cash equivalents, end of per $ 47.1 $ 24.C $ 47.1 $ 24.(

Financial and Capital Resources and Liquidity

As of June 30, 2012, we had total debt of $606IBaniand $47.1 million of cash and cash equivader@mpared to $631.3 million of
debt and $24.0 million of cash and cash equivalesitsf July 2, 2011.

We believe that our level of resources, which idelsicash on hand, available borrowings under aatdmsed lending credit facility
(the “ABL facility”) and funds provided by operatis, will be adequate to meet our expenses, capip@nditures, and debt service
obligations for the next twelve months. We haventaned adequate liquidity to meet current worlkdagital requirements, fund capital
expenditures and repay scheduled principal andeist@ayments on debt. Absent deterioration of etas&nditions, we believe that cash
flows from operating activities and financing adtas will provide adequate resources to satisfykivg capital, scheduled principal and
interest payments on debt, and anticipated cagxj@nsion requirements for both short-term and-kemg capital needs. For periods
extending beyond twelve months, we believe thatatility to generate cash to meet our expensesiabtiservice obligations and to
otherwise reduce our debt as anticipated will ddgammarily on our ability to retain a substan@ahount of volume from our key customers
and maintain the profitability of our businesswi do not generate sufficient cash from operat@mmsave excess debt availability to meet our
expenses and debt service obligations or if the A&lllity, the 8.375% senior notes that are dué&omember 15, 2017 (the “2017 Notes”) or
the 2018 Notes were to become currently due, eétheraturity or as a result of a breach, we maseljeired to take actions such as amen
our ABL facility, the indenture governing the 20lidtes, or the indenture governing the 2018 Notfimancing all or part of our existing
debt, selling assets, incurring additional indeb&=s or raising equity. If we need to seek addilifinancing, there is no assurance that this
additional financing will be available.

Should we desire to consummate significant acgoisipportunities or undertake significant expansgtivities, our capital needs
would increase and could result in our needingoiwdw available amounts under the ABL facility, i@ease available borrowings under our
ABL facility or access public or private debt argligy markets.

As of June 30, 2012, our total availability undes ABL facility was $275.0 million, which was based our borrowing base (accounts
receivables, inventory, and fixed assets) as gf I&) 2012 (the June month-end under the termiseo€ttedit agreement governing our ABL
facility), and we had no ABL borrowings outstandeagd $11.0 million in outstanding letters of credis a result, our excess availability
under the ABL facility was $264.0 million. Each nibis borrowing base is not effective until subndtte the lenders, which usually occurs
on the fifteenth day of the following month.

We may, from time to time, depending on market @imas, including without limitation whether the PD Notes or 2018 Notes are tt
trading at discounts to their respective face artmyuapurchase the 2017 Notes or 2018 Notes fdr @ad/or in exchange for shares of our
common stock, warrants, preferred stock, debtleratonsideration, in each case in open markehpses and/or privately negotiated
transactions. The amounts involved in any suctstretions, individually or in the aggregate, mayriaerial. However, the covenants in our
ABL facility subject such purchases to certain tatibns and conditions.
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Operating activities

Cash used in operating activities was $5.0 milliear to date compared to $4.3 million in the corapk prior year period. The $0.7
million increase was due primarily to timing of acnts payable payments, offset in part by the tinghaccounts receivable receipts.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities was $45.1 milljyear to date compared to $27.5 million in the carmaple prior year period. The $17.6
million increase was due primarily to increaseditedexpenditures and the acquisition of a beveagkwholesale business in our U.K.
reporting segment.

Financing activities

Cash used in financing activities was $4.3 millj@ar to date compared to cash provided of $6.3anilh the comparable prior year
period. The change was due primarily to ABL bornogs in the prior year period.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as dafimiéel Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K as of J88e2012.

Contractual Obligations

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfie year ended December 31,
2011.

Debt
Asset Based Lending Credit Facil

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agreémvgh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thattecean ABL facility to provid
financing for our North America, U.K. and Mexicqoaating segments. In connection with the Cliffsdaquisition, we refinanced the ABL
facility on August 17, 2010 to, among other thingsvide for the Cliffstar Acquisition, the issua&naf the 2018 Notes and the application of
net proceeds therefrom, the underwritten publierrffy of 13,340,000 common shares at a price &#&per share and the application of net
proceeds therefrom and to increase the amountaéaifor borrowings to $275.0 million. We drew doaportion of the indebtedness under
the ABL facility in order to fund the Cliffstar Aeggition. We incurred $5.4 million of financing feé connection with the refinancing of the
ABL facility.

As of June 30, 2012, we had no outstanding borrgsvimder the ABL facility. The commitment fee was% per annum of the unused
commitment, which was $264.0 million as of June Z1,2.

On July 19, 2012, we amended the ABL facility tmamg other things, extend the maturity date toegiftuly 19, 2017 or, if we have r
redeemed, repurchased or refinanced the 2017 Kptekay 1, 2017, May 15, 2017.

The financing fees incurred in connection with ténancing of the ABL facility on August 17, 2018lpng with the financing fees
incurred in connection with the amendment of the ABcility on July 19, 2012, are amortized using #iraight line method over the durat
of the amended ABL facility.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued $375.0 million of20&88 Notes. The issuer of the 2018 Notes is oully#owned subsidiary Cott
Beverages Inc., but Cott Corporation and mostsollitS., Canadian and U.K. subsidiaries guarane2@h8 Notes. The interest on the 2018
Notes is payable se-annually on March # and Septembest 1 of each year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in cootien with the 2018 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whigitesents the duration of the 2018 Notes.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 milliorhef2017 Notes. The 2017 Notes were issued at anfiBlidn discount. The issuer
of the 2017 Notes is our wholly-owned subsidiangt®@®verages Inc., but Cott Corporation and mostsaf).S., Canadian and U.K.
subsidiaries guarantee the 2017 Notes. The interedte 2017 Notes is payable semi-annually on M&ay and November 18 of each year.
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We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in cortien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whigitesents the duration of the 2017 Notes.

Credit Ratings and Covenant Compliance
Credit Ratings

We have no material changes to the disclosureiemthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Kifi@ year ended December 31,
2011.

Covenant Compliance
ABL Facility

Under the credit agreement governing the ABL fagilCott Corporation and its restricted subsidm@ee subject to a number of
business and financial covenants, including a carerequiring a minimum fixed charge coverage rafiat least 1.1 to 1.0 effective when
and if excess availability is less than the greaférn) $30.0 million and (b) the lesser of (i) 3% of the amount of the aggregate borrowing
base or (ii) $37.5 million. Although the covenarasanot triggered as of June 30, 2012, the fixedgeheoverage ratio as calculated under this
covenant was greater than 1.1 to 1.0. If availghisi less than $37.5 million, the lenders willgadkominion over the cash and will apply
excess cash to reduce amounts owing under théyagihe credit agreement governing the ABL fagiliequires an aggregate availability of
at least $15.0 million. We were in compliance wéthof the applicable covenants under the ABL facés of June 30, 2012.

On July 19, 2012, we, and the other parties tcAfBk facility, agreed to amend the ABL facility tamong other things (a) extend the
maturity date to either July 19, 2017 or, if we éanot redeemed, repurchased or refinanced the R0tEs by May 1, 2017, May 15, 2017,
(b) change the threshold at which the springingimmim fixed charge coverage ratio would be testdd¢ckvthreshold will now be met if
excess availability is less than the greater of Hd%he lenders’ commitments under the revolvingdirfacility (the “Revolver”) or $27.5
million, and (c) change the threshold at whichgpgnging cash dominion provision would becomeaffe, which threshold will now be
if excess availability is less than the greatet26% of the lenders’ commitments under the Revabveé$34.375 million.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

Under the indenture governing the 2018 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including camenthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extteqps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oaka distributions, repurchase equity
securities, prepay subordinated debt or make cerntgestments, (ii) incur additional debt or iss@etain disqualified stock or preferred st
(iii) create or incur liens on assets securing ltdéness, (iv) merge or consolidate with anothemgamy or sell all or substantially all of our
assets taken as a whole, (v) enter into transactidgth affiliates and (vi) sell assets. We haverbi@eecompliance with all of the covenants
under the 2018 Notes and there have been no ametgltoeany such covenants since the 2018 Notesiasred.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

Under the indenture governing the 2017 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including camenthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extteqps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oaka distributions, repurchase equity
securities, prepay subordinated debt or make cerntgestments, (ii) incur additional debt or iss@etain disqualified stock or preferred st
(iii) create or incur liens on assets securing ltdéness, (iv) merge or consolidate with anothemgamny or sell all or substantially all of our
assets taken as a whole, (v) enter into transactidgth affiliates and (vi) sell assets. We haverbieecompliance with all of the covenants
under the 2017 Notes and there have been no ametgltoeany such covenants since the 2017 Notesissred.

Common Share Repurchase Program

On May 1, 2012, our Board of Directors authorizeel tepurchase of up to $35 million of our commoarsh in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over -anbath period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditig plan or at management’s discretion
in compliance with regulatory requirements, ancegimarket, cost and other considerations. We aablaro predict the number of shares
that will be repurchased under the share repurgh@ggam, or the aggregate dollar amount of theeshactually purchased. We may
discontinue purchases at any time, subject to camge with applicable regulatory requirements. Dgithe second quarter of 2012, we
repurchased 35,272 common shares for approxim&@es/million through open market transactions.
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Capital Structure

Since December 31, 2011, our equity has increag&38.5 million. The increase was the result ofinebme of $31.0 million, share-
based compensation expense of $2.2 million, aner atbmprehensive income of $0.6 million.

Dividend Payments

There are certain restrictions on the paymentwifidnds under our ABL facility and under the indeets governing the 2017 Notes and
2018 Notes. No dividends payments were made dnadjrst six months of 2012 or in 2011.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies require managemenhake estimates and assumptions that affecefieeted amounts in the
consolidated financial statements and the acconipgmptes. These estimates are based on histesipakience, the advice of external
experts or other assumptions management belieuss teasonable. Where actual amounts differ fraimages, revisions are included in the
results for the period in which actuals become kmadistorically, differences between estimates actdials have not had a significant impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

Critical accounting policies and estimates usegrépare the financial statements are discussedowithudit Committee as they are
implemented and on an annual basis.

We have no material changes to our Critical AccimgnPolicies and Estimates disclosure as filedunAnnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Forward-looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this reponay contain statements relating to future eventisfature results. These statements are
“forward-looking” within the meaning of the Priva8ecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and applle Canadian securities legislation
and involve known and unknown risks, uncertaintiesjre expectations and other factors that mageactual results, performance or
achievements of Cott Corporation to be materiaifiecent from any future results, performance dniaeements expressed or implied by s
forward-looking statements. Such statements in¢lodeare not limited to, statements that relatergjections of sales, earnings, earnings per
share, cash flows, capital expenditures or otmamitial items, discussions of estimated futuremegeenhancements and cost savings. These
statements also relate to our business strategys gad expectations concerning our market positidore operations, margins, profitability,
liquidity and capital resources. Generally, wordstsas “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could;endeavor,” “estimate,” “expect,”

“intend,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “predict,” “project,” “should” and similar terms and phrases are usddentify forward-looking statements in
this report and in the documents incorporated imréport by reference. These forward-looking stemets reflect current expectations
regarding future events and operating performandeaae made only as of the date of this report.

The forward-looking statements are not guarantéésgture performance or events and, by their natare based on certain estimates
and assumptions regarding interest and foreignamgd rates, expected growth, results of operatmsréprmance, business prospects and
opportunities and effective income tax rates, whinh subject to inherent risks and uncertaintiesteMal factors or assumptions that were
applied in drawing a conclusion or making an estins®t out in forward-looking statements may ineluslt are not limited to, assumptions
regarding management’s current plans and estimatesbility to remain a low cost supplier, andeetfive management of commodity costs.
Although we believe the assumptions underlyingetfesward-looking statements are reasonable, atlyesie assumptions could prove to be
inaccurate and, as a result, the forwlaking statements based on those assumptions poaVe to be incorrect. Our operations involve s
and uncertainties, many of which are outside ofamntrol, and any one or any combination of théslesrand uncertainties could also affect
whether the forward-looking statements ultimataigve to be correct. These risks and uncertaintiglside, but are not limited to, those
described in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in cddmnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwer 31, 2011, and those described
from time to time in our future reports filed withe Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)@adadian securities regulatory
authorities.

The following are some of the factors that coul@etfour financial performance, including but riatited to, sales, earnings and cash
flows, or could cause actual results to differ matly from estimates contained in or underlying florward-looking statements:
» our ability to compete successfully in the hightyrpetitive beverage catego

» changes in consumer tastes and preferences faingqsoducts and our ability to develop and timialynch new products that
appeal to such changing consumer tastes and pneés;

» loss of or a reduction in sales to any significaugtomer, particularly Walmai
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fluctuations in commaodity prices and our abilityptass on increased costs to our customers, anchffaet of those increased
prices on our volume:!

our ability to manage our operations successf

currency fluctuations that adversely affect thehexge between the U.S. dollar and the British pateding, the Euro, the
Canadian dollar, the Mexican peso and other cuiesr

our ability to maintain favorable arrangements exidtionships with our supplier

our ability to realize the expected benefits of Giéfstar Acquisition because of integration diffities and other challenge
risks associated with the asset purchase agreemered into in connection with the Cliffstar Acsjtion;

our substantial indebtedness we incurred and dlityatb meet our obligations

our ability to maintain compliance with the covetsaand conditions under our debt agreeme

fluctuations in interest rate

credit rating change:

the impact of global financial events on our finahcesults;

our ability to fully realize the expected cost $ms and/or operating efficiencies from our restrtingy activities;
any disruption to production at our beverage cotraées or other manufacturing facilitie

our ability to protect our intellectual proper

compliance with product health and safety stand:

liability for injury or illness caused by the comsption of contaminated produc

liability and damage to our reputation as a restlitigation or legal proceeding

changes in the legal and regulatory environmenmthith we operate

the impact of proposed taxes on soda and othergsdgaks;

enforcement of compliance with the Ontario Enviremtal Protection Act

unseasonably cold or wet weather, which could redlenand for our beverag:

the impact of national, regional and global eveimtsiuding those of a political, economic, businaeg competitive natur:
our ability to recruit, retain, and integrate ne@magement and a new management struc

our exposure to intangible asset ri

our ability to renew our collective bargaining agmeents on satisfactory tern

disruptions in our information systen

volatility of our stock price; o

our ability to maintain compliance with the listingquirements of the New York Stock Exchar

We undertake no obligation to update any infornmationtained in this report or to publicly reledse tesults of any revisions to
forward-looking statements to reflect events ocwinstances of which we may become aware of afteddte of this report. Undue reliance
should not be placed on forward-looking statemeantd, all future written and oral forward-looking&ments attributable to us or persons
acting on our behalf are expressly qualified irirteatirety by the foregoing.

Item 3.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

We do not trade market risk sensitive instruments.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Our North America and U.K. reporting segments paseha portion of their inventory for our Canadiad &uropean operations,
respectively, through transactions denominatedsatited in U.S. dollars and Euros, respectivelyremcies different from the functional
currency of those operations. These inventory msehl are subject to exposure from
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movements in exchange rates. We use foreign exelfamgard contracts to hedge operational exposessting from changes in these
foreign currency exchange rates. The intent ofdheign exchange contracts is to provide predititghn our overall cost structure. These
foreign exchange contracts, carried at fair vathase maturities of less than one year. As of Jih&312, we had outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts with notional amount$36 million.

Debt Obligations and Interest Rates

We have exposure to interest rate risk from thetanting principal amounts of our short-term amdjkterm debt. Our long-
term debt is fixed and our short-term debt is \ldeaOur ABL facility is vulnerable to fluctuationis the U.S. short-term base rate and the
LIBOR rate. At current debt levels as of June 3,2 a 100 basis point increase in the currenapeum interest rate for our ABL facility
(excluding the $11.0 million outstanding letterscoddit) would result in less than $0.1 millionaafditional interest expense during the next
year. This change would not be material to our ¢sts or our results of operations. The weigl-average interest rate of our debt
outstanding at June 30, 2012 was 8.2%.

Commodity Price Risk

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfie year ended December 31,
2011.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaes as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15¢hedSecurities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Camijsamanagement, under the supervision and witlp#rcipation of the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officearried out an evaluation of the effectivenesthefdesign and operation of the
Company'’s disclosure controls and procedures dsré 30, 2012. Based upon this evaluation, the @agip Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of J8@e2012, the Company'’s disclosure controls andexores are functioning effectively to
ensure that information required to be disclosethkeyCompany in reports filed or submitted underlExchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipe in SEC rules and forms, and accumulateda@mmunicated to the Company’s
management, including the Company’s Chief Execufifficer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow tityedecisions regarding required
disclosure.

In addition, our management carried out an evalnats required by Rule 13a-15(d) of the Exchangfe With the participation of our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial i0éfr, of changes in our internal control over fic@ahreporting. Based on this evaluation,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finan€ficer concluded that there have been no chaimgesr internal control over financial
reporting during our most recent fiscal quartet tieve materially affected, or are reasonably jikelmaterially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Reference is made to the legal proceedings desciibaur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgahr ended December 31, 2011.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

There has been no material change in our risk fasioce December 31, 2011. Please refer to ouu@lriReport on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 for a detaiésgription of our risk factors.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds

Common Share Repurchase Program
The following is a summary of share repurchaseviigtiluring the three months ended June 30, 2012.

Maximum Approximate

Average Price Total Number of Shares o Dollar Value of Shares o
Common Stock Purchase Common Stock that May
Paid per
Total Number of Shares o Share of as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased Unde
Common Announced Plans or
Common Stock Purchase Stock Programs the Plans or Programs
April 1, 2012- April 30, 201: — — — —
May 1, 2012t- May 31, 201! 35,27: $ 7.3C 35,27: $ 34,742,51
June 1, 201- June 30, 201 — — — 34,742,51
Total 35,27 $ 7.3C 35,27 $ 34,742,51

1 On May 1, 2012, our Board of Directors authoritteelrepurchase of up to $35 million of our comrsbares in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over anbath period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditrg plan or at management’s
discretion. The timing and actual number of shateshased will depend on a variety of factors sagbprice, corporate and regulatory
requirements, and prevailing market conditions.Mé&y terminate or limit the share repurchase prograany time without prior notic
The Company repurchased 35,272 shares of commok fstoapproximately $0.3 million during the quarémded June 30, 20:
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ltem 6. Exhibits

Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our FormKl@ated February 28,
2007).
3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Cotiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to &orm 10-Q filed
May 10, 2007)
10.1 Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as oflAP, 2012, by and among Cott Corporation, Catv8rages Inc.,

Cliffstar LLC, and Cott Beverages Limited, as Bavars, the other Loan Parties party thereto, theleenparty thereto, and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Aderorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to oarr 10-Q filed May 7,

2012).

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fab2he quarterly period
ended June 30, 2012 (filed herewit

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended June 30, 2012 (filed herewit

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended June 30, 2012 (furnished herew

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended June 30, 2012 (furnished herew

101 The following financial statements from Cott Corgibton’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the qeaended June 30, 2012,

filed on August 3, 2012, formatted in XBRL (eXtdnisi Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolid&edements of
Operations, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Staten@@r@®mprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated BalaBbeets, (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Conatditl Statements of Equity, (vi) Notes to the Cadatéd Financial
Statements (furnished herewit

48



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

COTT CORPORATION
(Registrant’

Date: August 3, 201 / s/ Jay Wells

Jay Wells
Chief Financial Officer
(On behalf of the Compan'

Date: August 3, 201 / s/ Gregory Leiter

Gregory Leiter

Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and
Assistant Secretary

(Principal Accounting Officer

Exhibit Index
Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our FormKl@ated February 28,
2007).
3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Cotiparéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to orm 10Q filed May
10, 2007)
10.1 Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as ofl AP, 2012, by and among Cott Corporation, Cav8&ages Inc., Cliffst:
LLC, and Cott Beverages Limited, as Borrowers,dtieer Loan Parties party thereto, the Lenders gheseto, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (incogied by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Forr-Q filed May 7, 2012)
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended June 30, 2012 (filed herewil
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended June 30, 2012 (filed herewil
32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fab2he quarterly period
ended June 30, 2012 (furnished herew
32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fa®2he quarterly period
ended June 30, 2012 (furnished herew
101 The following financial statements from Cott Corgiion’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the geagnded June 30, 2012,

filed on August 3, 2012, formatted in XBRL (eXtdnisi Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolid&zdements of
Operations, (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statema#r@®mprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated BalaSbteets, (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Conatditl Statements of Equity, (vi) Notes to the Cddatgd Financial
Statements (furnished herewit
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Jerry Fowden, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet
this report;

4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiing, or caused such internal control over faiakreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

August 3, 201! / s/ Jerry Fowden
Jerry Fowder
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Jay Wells, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet
this report;

4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiing, or caused such internal control over faiakreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

August 3, 201! /sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Office!




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jerry Fowden, Chief Executived®ffof Cott Corporation (the “Company”), has exeduthis certification in connection
with the filing with the Securities and Exchangen@nission of the Company’s Quarterly Report on F&0¥Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2012 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsiscknowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of

the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the 8 day of August, 2012.

/sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowden
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jay Wells, Chief Financial Offisge€ott Corporation (the “Company”), has executad certification in connection with
the filing with the Securities and Exchange Cominis®f the Company’s Quarterly Report on FormQ@er the quarter ended June 30, 2
(the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsisctknowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of

the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the 8 day of August, 2012.

/sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Officel




